
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Luis Avila, President 
Becky Campo, Vice-President 
Timothy Benefield, Secretary 

Anne Stokman, RN, Treasurer 
(Vacant), Director 

 
PO Box 187, Patterson, CA 95363 

Phone (209) 892-8781 Fax (209) 892-3755 
 
 
 

SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

Monday, July 17, 2023 @ 6:30 pm 
Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Ste B, North Conference Room 

Broadcast via: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82181790774?pwd=OUVUQzVEdjY0UDNvRnZqM00vYndCQT09  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the 
general public at the beginning of the regular agenda. If you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, you are welcome to do so during 
consideration of the agenda item itself. If you wish to speak on a matter that does not appear on the agenda, you may do so during 
the Public Comment period; however, California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posted agenda 
unless it is determined to be an emergency by the Board of Directors. Persons speaking during the Public Comment will be limited to 
five minutes. Depending on the number of persons wishing to speak, speaking time may be reduced to allow all public members to 
address the Board. Public comments must be addressed to the board through the President. Comments to individuals or staff are not 
permitted. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are identified with an asterisk (*). All 
items on the consent calendar will be voted on as a single action at the beginning of the meeting under the section titled “Consent 
Calendar” without discussion. If you wish to discuss an item on the Consent Calendar, please notify the Clerk of the Board prior to the 
beginning of the meeting or you may speak about the item during Public Comment Period. 

 
REGULAR CALENDAR: These items will be individually discussed and include all items not on the consent calendar, all public 
hearings, and correspondence. 

 
CLOSED SESSION: Is the portion of the meeting conducted in private without the attendance of the public or press to discuss certain 
confidential matters specifically permitted by the Brown Act. The public will be provided an opportunity to comment on any matter to 
be considered in closed session prior to the Board adjourning into closed session. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON A MATTER ON THE AGENDA: Please raise your 
hand or step to the podium at the time the Board President announces the item. In order that interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes unless the President of the Board grants a longer 
period. 

 
BOARD AGENDAS AND MINUTES: Board agendas and minutes are typically posted on the Internet on Friday afternoons preceding 
a Monday meeting at the following website: https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings. 

 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District office at 875 E Street, Patterson, CA during normal business hours. Such documents are also available online, 
subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting, at the following website https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board- 
meetings. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: Board of Director meetings are conducted in English and translation to other 
languages is not provided. Please arrange for an interpreter, if necessary. 

 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (209) 892-8781. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 
Cell phones must be silenced or set in a mode to not disturb District business during the meeting. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82181790774?pwd=OUVUQzVEdjY0UDNvRnZqM00vYndCQT09
https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings


DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Special Board of Directors Meeting 

Monday, July 17, 2023 @ 6:30 pm 

\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\05-may\_2023-05-22 board meeting agenda.docx 5/17/2023 

 

 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Board of Directors Roll Call 

 
4. Reading the Vision, Mission, and Value Statements 

Vision: “A locally cultivated, healthier community.” 
Mission: “To provide, promote, and partner in quality healthcare for all.” 
Values: “Compassion – Commitment – Excellence” 

5. Public Comment Period [Members of the public may address the Board on any issues on the Consent Calendar and 
items not listed on the agenda that are within the purview of the District. Comments on the agenda are made when the 
Board considers each item. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of five minutes. Board members may not comment or act 
on items not on the agenda.] 

6. Declarations of Conflict [Board members disclose any conflicts of interest with agenda items] 
 

7. Approval of Agenda Action 
[*Directors may request moving any consent calendar item to the regular calendar or change the order of the agenda items.] 

8. Regular Calendar 
A. Review of Health Center Master Plan Information 

B. Review of DPAC Building Project History (2017 to present) Information 

C. Approval to Contract with Building Project Consultant, Bob Walker Action 
 

9. Closed Session [Board of Directors may recess to closed session to discuss certain matters as legally permitted. 
Any action taken shall be reported in open session.] 

A. Gov’t Code section 54956.8 Conference with Real Property Negotiator 
   Property:  APN 0131-024-007131-024-009-000 
 

10. Reconvene to Open Session – Report of Closed Session  

11. Upcoming Regular Board and Standing Committee Meeting Dates Information 
Finance – Wed, July 26, 2023 @ 8:00 AM Board – Mon, July 31, 2023 @ 6:00 PM 

Finance – Wed, Aug 23, 2023 @ 8:00 AM Board – Mon, Aug 28, 2023 @ 6:00 PM 

                 Finance – Wed, Sep 20, 2023 @ 8:00 AM                 Board - Mon, Sep 26, 2023 @ 6:00 PM 

Finance – Wed, Oct 25, 2023 @ 8:00 AM Board – Mon, Oct 30, 2023 @ 6:00 PM 
12. Adjourn 



Del Puerto Health Care District 
HEALTH CENTER MASTER FACILITIES PLAN 

o:\facilities\keystone bldgs\keystone b\health center facility history.docx  7/6/2023 

Hospital – 821 E Street 
1947 Hospital land purchased 5.89 acres (256,772 sf) 
1990 Voters pass Measure E, which rezones the land into a Planned Development: Medical 

Professional Office (see 2018-01-23 for legal opinion on land use). 
1993 .86 acre (37,539 sf) of hospital land sold to Gould Medical Group (now Sutter Gould 

Medical Foundation) for an 8,000 sf primary care facility. Deed has “reversionary interest 
to the District permitting it to re-purchase the real property in the future would it be in the 
best interest of the District” for fair market value plus the value of any improvements. 

1995 Patterson Hospital District is renamed Del Puerto Health Care District after a state law 
change. 

1998 Del Puerto Hospital closes; plans made to open a Rural Health Clinic after hospital 
operating debt is paid off. 

2000 Hospital building and land sold; a 25’ easement is recorded to allow DO/AMB building 
access. 

 
 
Rural Health Clinic 
2003 Del Puerto Health Center (DPHC) clinic opens on Circle Plaza in downtown Patterson 
2005 DPHC moved to a 5,000+ sf leased facility at the corner of Ward and 33 
 
 
1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Suite B “Health Center” 
2008 District entered an agreement to purchase a shell building at 1700 Keystone Pacific 

Pkwy, Suite B, for $2,657,340 plus the build-out expenses estimated at $1,116,500 and 
FF&E for $367,405 for a total expenditure of $4,141,245. 

2009 District campaigns for zoning approval at 1700 Keystone Pacific Pkwy to allow for 
medical services to be provided. 

2010 Funding provided by USDA 40-year loan with $10k monthly payment.  
2011 Interior of Keystone B is designed to connect to Keystone C; the board plans to purchase 

Keystone C for future health center expansion. 
 

 



Del Puerto Health Care District 
HEALTH CENTER MASTER FACILITIES PLAN 

o:\facilities\keystone bldgs\keystone b\health center facility history.docx  7/6/2023 

 
2012 DPHC moves into 11,490 sf clinic at Keystone B.  

• 3 Wings, including 
o 19 Exam Rooms 
o 3 MA workstations 
o 4 Back-office desks 

• 1 Procedure Rm (Rm 20-21) 
• 6 Provider offices 
• 2 Entrances/Waiting rooms1 X-ray suite / Ancillary waiting room 
• 1 Phone room (former Records room) 
• 1 Staff break room 
• 6 Restrooms 
• 1 Conference room seats 18 
• 1 Lab  
• Storage Room 

 
 



Del Puerto Health Care District 
HEALTH CENTER MASTER FACILITIES PLAN 

o:\facilities\keystone bldgs\keystone b\health center facility history.docx  7/6/2023 

1700 Keystone Pacific Pkwy, Suite C “Keystone C” 
2016-03 District purchases Keystone C for $1,950,000  
2016-07 Hospital burns down. 
2022-11 District pays off the loan on Keystone C. 
2022-09 Keystone C Leases renewed:  

 
Suite & Configuration Tenant Current Lease End Annual Revenue 
C1 – Physical Therapy Golden Bear September 2027 $61,932 
C2 – Orthodontist  [Vacant] n/a -0- 
C3 – Office Keystone Corporation December 2023 48,516 
C4 – Physical Therapy Golden Bear September September 2027 31,464 

Total Revenue $141,912 
FYE net income  75,000 

FYE depreciation (saved in asset replacement fund) 44,000 
Net Revenue $119,000 

Total Invest $2,000,000 
Annual ROI 5.95% 

 





Del Puerto Health Care District 
DEL PUERTO AMBULANCE AND ADMINISTRATION CENTER (DPAC) 

HISTORY & SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\amb admin building history.docx 7/7/2023 

Del Puerto Hospital (including Ambulance and District Office) at 821 E Street 
1947 Hospital land purchased 5.89 acres (256,772 sf) 
1959-1976 Patterson Hospital District subsidizes various owners of ambulance services dedicated to 

the Del Puerto Hospital. 
1976 District buys Patterson Ambulance Company. The ambulance operates from a garage 

attached to or near the hospital building. Averaging 40 trips per month. 
1977 West Side Hospital requests Del Puerto Hospital provide ambulance service in the 

Gustine-Newman area. No agreement was reached. 
1980 Name changed to Patterson Ambulance Service in minutes. 
1981 Del Puerto Hospital begins to provide ambulance services in the Gustine-Newman area to 

transport to West Side Hospital under a joint-power agreement. 
1984 West Side Hospital District announces change to the name listed on the Gustine-Newman 

ambulance to assist with passage of WS ambulance subsidy measure. 
1984 Name was changed to Patterson District Ambulance to reflect the regional service area. 
1986 Voters pass ambulance special assessment 
1990 Voters pass Measure E, which rezones the land into a Planned Development: Medical 

Professional Office (see 2018-01-23 for legal opinion on land use). 
1993 .86 acre (37,539 sf) sold to Gould Medical Group (now Sutter Gould Medical 

Foundation) for an 8,000 primary care facility; has “reversionary interest to the District 
permitting it to re-purchase the real property in the future would it be in the best interest 
of the District” for fair market value plus the value of any improvements. 

1994 District Board recognized the need to expand the ambulance crew quarters and decided to 
remodel existing quarters in the hospital. 

1995 Patterson Hospital District is renamed Del Puerto Health Care District after a state law 
change. 

1998 Del Puerto Hospital closes; ambulance continues to operate out of a portion of the 
hospital building corner lot parceled off from the main site in anticipation of the sale of 
the hospital building. 

2000 Hospital building and land sold; a 25’ easement is recorded to allow DO/AMB building 
access. 

District Office and Ambulance Operations Building at 875 E Street 
2003 Construction finished on 4,661 square foot facility including: 

• ambulance apparatus bays, storage 1,675 36% 
• 4 crew bedrooms, kitchen, 1 EMS office,   1,563 34% 
• 1 admin office, front desk, file storage 1,023 22% 
• class & board meeting room    400   9% 

Pre-2006 PDA staff second car for 12 hours day shifts. 
2015 PDA starts staffing a second full-time (24/7/365) ambulance. 
2016 Hospital burns down; the District lets owner, Mr. Garcia, know we need additional land 

for ambulance and district office expansion. 
2017-06-17 Mr. Garcia submitted plans to the City of Patterson to develop the entire property and 

proposed offering ten parking spaces available for district needs. Email indicates Garcia 
is looking for $650,000 per acre ($14.92 / SF) to purchase undeveloped land. 

2017-06-26 Board instructs staff to determine requirements for the long-term ambulance and district 
office space needs and authorize $10,000 for initial consultations. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 1 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 
DEL PUERTO AMBULANCE AND ADMINISTRATION CENTER (DPAC) 

HISTORY & SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\amb admin building history.docx  7/7/2023 

2017-07-12 PDA Program Requirements. Baseline AMB and DO space program requirements 
established. Property appraisal was obtained and the value of the property was 
established at $8.50 / SF. 

2017-08 Board instructs staff to proceed with the program, find out the impact of zoning 
restrictions, conduct space planning, and obtain price and purchase terms for land and 
facility.  

2017-09 First Building Estimate Provided = $7 million 
2018-01-23  Legal Memo from City of Patterson: Legal counsel clarifies Measure E and Medical 

Office Building Zoning. City of Patterson Building Code 18-42 Commercial and 
Medical-Professional Office Districts restricts hospital land (as purchased in 1947) use 
for business support services, hospitals, bank and financial services, dental offices, and 
professional offices. Several other uses are permitted upon obtaining a conditional use 
permit, including retail stores, restaurants, and hotels. Any attempt to rezone the property 
in a manner that would prohibit the development of the property consistent with PD 89-
01, such as a return to residential zoning, would first require approval by voter initiative. 
The city does not see a conflict with the ambulance continuing to operate on location as it 
has since before the voter 1990 referendum. 

2018-02-26 Board Reviews Facilities Planning Report 
2018-03-16 Offer extended to Garcia to purchase 33,275 at an appraised value of $8.50/SF. 
2018-03-26 Garcia returns with a counteroffer to sell a 48,727 parcel at $14.25/SF. 
2018-04-18 Garcia refuses to consider our offer and parcel request insisting on his parcel layout and 

purchase price. 
2018-04-27 Memo to Board regarding need for property and directions received to date from Board.  
2018-04-30 Board reviews Facility Plan and adopts Resolution of Necessity with Proposed Lot Map 

to begin eminent domain process and complaint filed. 
2018-06 Garcia receives notice of the complaint and his rights as the landowner, which includes 

an appraisal of his choice, which will be paid for by the District.  
2018-12 Garcia finally completes his appraisal, which comes in at $12.50 / SF, with properties 

that are not similar to the nature of the hospital grounds. 
2019-02 Pre-trial settlement conference set for Feb 4, 2019, and a trial date for October 19, 2019. 

Mr. Garcia’s legal counsel was not responsive to the settlement offer request. 
2019-08  Attempt approach to pay Garcia’s asking price on ½ of the property and his donating the 

second half which provides a tax write-off. Negotiations begin 
2019-10-15 Negotiations conclude with an agreed price of $10.37 per SF to Garcia. 
2019-12 Environmental studies were completed with negative results for asbestos and other 

hazardous substances in the parcel. 
2020-03  COVID closes courts, and the entry of stipulation and court order of condemnation is 

delayed until November 2020. 
2020-11-19 Grant Deed given to District for the parcel. 
2021-01-25 The Board approves an updated Statement of Investment Policy. This policy specifies the 

District's conditions, transparency, and accountability requirements to access bonds or 
other funding for a building project. Facilities Planning Update including Next Steps 
(e.g., land survey, contract with municipal advisors for bond issuance, and professional 
design services) presented to Board, including discussion of the opportunity to use the 
Design-Build approach and need for legal clarification about the applicability to our 
project. 

2021-03-29 Educational presentation on the Construction Process, Design-Bid-Build, and Design-
Build by Joe Simile of Simile Construction in Modesto.  

July 17, 2023 - Page 2 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 
DEL PUERTO AMBULANCE AND ADMINISTRATION CENTER (DPAC) 

HISTORY & SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\amb admin building history.docx  7/7/2023 

*Staff requests to engage specialized counsel for a legal opinion on the use of the Design-
Build Process by the District on this project. Board chooses to table their decision until 
after a presentation by the City Planning Department. 

2021-05-05 PW & KF meeting with City Planning department to discuss project and City 
recommendations – Synopsis of 2021-05-05 meeting emailed to Board. 

2021-05-24 Board adopts a Debt Management Policy, which documents the District's understanding 
of the conditions, transparency, and accountability requirements to access bonds or other 
funding.  

2021-06-28 City Presentation on Building Process by the Patterson Planning Department. The city 
recommended the District use Design-Build if the option is available. 

2021-07-26 Facilities Plan Review with Updated Costs reviewed by Board. 
2022-01-31 California HCD Financing Techniques article provided to the board. 
2022-02-28 Board agrees to obtain a legal opinion on Design-Build Option. After we get the decision 

from the attorney, the board wants to discuss the pros and cons of each method before 
proceeding. 

2022-04 Legal Opinion: the District can likely utilize the design-build project delivery method for 
designing and constructing the Facility pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 
32132.5 because the District is a health care district and the Facility is associated with 
health care facilities.  

2022-05-18 Presentation of Building Plan Review and proposal to initiate district office and 
ambulance operations facility project and review initial project budget to fund a 
conceptual design and project cost estimate.  

2022-05-23 Request for Proposal – Conceptual Design released. 
2022-06-24 Conceptual Design contract awarded to LDA Partners of Stockton. 
2022-08-29 Preliminary Design and Construction Schedule as created by LDA Partners presented. 

*Also discussed projected growth of homes in Patterson and impact on demand for 
services. Presented a Forecast of Ambulance Unit Hours in future years to meet requests 
for emergency service. 

2022-09 Sought information on federal and state funding for the project.  
 *Land survey completed, and site is outside of flood plain. 
2022-12-07 Project meeting with conceptual design architect. 
2023-01-30 Sought feedback from ambulance and administration employees on site layout and 

building footprint. Employee feedback was very positive. 
*Board presentation by architect on conceptual design options 1 & 2 as well as discussion 
on DBB vs. DB. 

2023-03 Obtained support letters for federal and state budget funding from the city, county 
supervisor, and county EMS agency. Submitted funding requests for federal and state 
budgets. Facility Funding Request submitted with support from Senator Padilla and 
Representative Alanis.  

2023-04-22 Strategic Planning Retreat – Board affirms building project as the top priority 
*Sought out options for temporary housing for 3rd 24-hour ambulance crew. 

2023-05-22 Design-Bid-Build vs. Design-Build with Staff Recommendation that the Board adopt the  
Design-Build approach for this project. The board asked about the advantages or 
disadvantages of either method regarding transparency and deferred taking a vote to a 
special meeting on June 12, 2023, to further discuss.  
*Presentation of Elevations for Options 1 and 2. 

2023-05-23 Email to Board Regarding Fiscal Transparency in DBB Vs. DB 

July 17, 2023 - Page 3 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 
DEL PUERTO AMBULANCE AND ADMINISTRATION CENTER (DPAC) 

HISTORY & SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\amb admin building history.docx  7/7/2023 

2023-06-12 Board Discussion item Review of DBB vs. DB Information Provided to Date and 
Discussion of DBB vs. DB Transparency in public construction contracting and building. 
The essential aspects highlighted in the May 23 email regarding transparency include the 
significance of competitive selection, transparent contract negotiations, consistent 
progress reporting, oversight and auditing, and comprehensive documentation and public 
disclosure of pertinent information. The board votes to use the Design-Build approach for 
the project. 

 *Presentation of Elevations Option 1’s straight roof line with external architectural 
features from Option 2. 

2023-06-26 Board agrees to retain a public construction project consultant to help our internal team 
during the RFP, contracting, and construction process. 
*Directors Avila and Campo are appointed to an RFP review ad hoc committee. 

 *A concern was raised by a board member that primary care wasn’t included in the 
project. The question was asked if the board did not consider ambulance services and 
EMS primary care.  
*The board determined that it would be appropriate to review the process by which the 
building projects have been decided to date and include information about the distribution 
of space between public use, ambulance (crew, apparatus, and equipment), and 
administration offices. 

2023-07-17 Special Meeting Scheduled– Staff conducted construction project consultant search and 
recommends Bob Walker - resume and fee schedule attached  

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 4 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\1 project program\2017-07-12 pda program requirements.docx 7/12/2017 

Patterson District Ambulance Program Requirements - July 12, 2017 

Patterson District Ambulance (PDA) staffs two 24-hour ALS ambulances at 875 E Street in Patterson.  
This location is a very good central location in the City of Patterson with good access to main roadways - 
Hwy 33 for north/south access, Las Palmas east, and Sperry west.  This location allows us the best 
opportunity to meet our urban response time requirements. 

There are four crew members on-duty at any given time.  It is common to have an intern or student rider 
with an ambulance crew.  Interns are with crews the entire 24-hour shift while students are generally 
limited to 12-hour day shifts. 

READY ROOM 
There needs to be a room large enough to accommodate 5 persons using recliner type chairs to watch 
TV or otherwise relax during down time between calls.  There needs to be space for a dry erase board 
and at least two bulletin boards.  Radio and pager chargers as well as spare batteries need to be 
accessible.  The existing facility space is too small. 

DINING ROOM 
The crews need a table area where they can eat their meals.  The existing facility does not have dining 
room space and depends on crew members using a shared counter space with the kitchen.  There are 
bar stools at the counter that frequently impede the travel path through the room to the apparatus bay. 

KITCHEN 
The existing kitchen area is small and has limited cabinet space and no pantry area to store food.  It is 
cramped if two people try to use the space at the same time.  The existing refrigerator is up against a wall 
that limits the opening of the refrigerator door.  A new facility needs a better kitchen layout with more work 
space plus cabinet and drawer storage space.  Room two refrigerators for adequate food storage and ice 
makers.  A dishwasher is required.  There should be enough space that trash and recycling can be stored 
out of sight. 

OFFICE SPACE 
There needs to be adequate space for crew members to have desk and computer access.  The office 
should have adequate file storage space, book shelfs, and crew member mailboxes.  Station alerting 
equipment including radios, an amplifier, and lighting and speaker control systems should most likely be 
located in this area. 

DORMATORY ROOMS 
The existing doom rooms are cramped due to two lockers in each of the four rooms.  The lockers should 
be moved out of the dorm rooms to male/female locker rooms.  There needs to be enough room for a 
chair and a night stand.  Need a minimum of 6 dorm rooms. 

BATHROOM / LOCKER ROOMS 
There should be male and female locker rooms.  There are currently 11 full-time paramedics and EMTs.  
There could be two additional full-time employees.  There should be at least two extra lockers in each 
locker room for part-time employees working a shift.  The bathrooms need vanity cabinets with adequate 
counter space and two sinks.  Bathrooms should allow for toilet and shower use without preventing use to 
sink/mirror space and lockers.  Shower areas need adequate space for a crew member to sit on a bench 
to dress and to have clothes quickly accessible out of the shower. 

EXERCISE/WORKOUT ROOM 
The current facility does not have any space for exercise equipment or machines.  We currently have an 
elliptical, a treadmill, and a weight machine/system.  A new facility should have enough space for this 
existing equipment at minimum and some floor space for stretching or other non-machine exercises. 
 
APPARATUS BAYS 

July 17, 2023 - Page 5 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\1 project program\2017-07-12 pda program requirements.docx 7/12/2017 

PDA currently has four ambulances and a supervisor SUV.  There is only apparatus bay space for two 
ambulances inside.  Between the existing facility and a new facility, all ambulances and the supervisor 
vehicle should be stored inside an apparatus bay.  There needs to be space for a washer and dryer, a 
utility sink with some counter space to clean equipment.  There needs to be space for automotive 
supplies, tools, a portable BBQ, and crew safety equipment that should not be stored inside ie: jackets, 
rain gear, rescue gloves, and helmets. 

MEDICATION / SUPPLY ROOM 
There needs to be a temperature controlled room for medications and medical supplies.  This room is a 
good location for battery chargers. 

SUPPLY ROOM / MEDICAL WASTE ROOM 
There needs to be a room for general storage of equipment ie backboards, standby tents, tables, chairs.  
Medical waste needs to be secured pending pickup by a waste company. 

GENERAL STORAGE 
There is a general lack of storage space in the current ambulance station/crew quarters.  Space to store 
cleaning equipment, cleaning and station supplies, and repair parts and supplies, probably more. 

CREW PARKING 
Ambulance crews and interns should have secured parking.  There should be adequate parking for shift 
changes. 

OUTSIDE/EXTERIOR 
There should be a small patio area where crews can relax outside and BBQ rather than having to BBQ in 
the driveway. 

OTHER THOUGHTS 
Consider a small community room for community interaction walk-in patients, immunization clinics, or 
small community health related meetings. 

Access to the crew quarters without having to go through the apparatus bay.  A man door access to 
apparatus bay rather than depending on apparatus doors. 

Emergency power to be sized to allow near full, or near full, capacity use of facility - cooking, 
refrigerator(s), HVAC, lighting, alerting system, apparatus doors, lighting and general plugs so facility can 
remain operational in extended power outages. 

OFFICE SPACE 
Ambulance Director and QI person require offices.  Currently the QI person uses a corner of the 
classroom area without privacy. 

Current District offices include:  Admin Director/CEO, Human Resources, and general office staff with 
counter area and lobby.  A record and office supply room, break room and/or mini kitchen, bathroom – 
handicapped accessible.  A small classroom with storage space.  Could use at least one more office. 

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 6 of 97



churchwellwhite.com  
 
1414 K Street, 3rd Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
T 916.468.0950  |  F 916.468.0951 

 
 
 
 
 

{CW051904.2}  

Memorandum 
 
To: Ken Irwin, City Manager  

Joel Andrews, City Planner 

From: Robin R. Baral 

Date: January 23, 2018 

Re: PD 89-01  

              
 
 
Issue:   
 
Are there any development restrictions on 821 “E” Street, Patterson, CA, APN: 131-024-007 (the 
“Property”), due to the passage of a voter initiative in 1990 (“Measure E”), which led to the 
adoption of Planned Development 89-01 (“PD 89-01”) by the City of Patterson (“City”)? 
 
Brief Answer:  
 
PD 89-01 is a Planned Development overlay district, which authorized the development of an 
8,000 square foot medical office. As an overlay district, the development plan approved by PD 
89-01 is in addition to the uses allowed pursuant to the underlying zoning, which is for Medical 
Professional Offices (“MPO”). A development application for the Property may therefore proceed 
consistent with PD 89-01 or, more generally, pursuant to the MPO zone.  
 
Discussion: 
 
Measure E was adopted by Patterson voters in 1990. Measure E proposed two related actions: 
(1) to adopt a development plan for medical offices, as presented to the City Council on June 29, 
1989, subject to the Commercial/Professional Building Code in effect on that date, and (2) to 
rezone the property to a PD zone.  
 

Robin R. Baral                                                                 
T: 916.468.0576                                                                 
Robin@churchwellwhite.com 
 

July 17, 2023 - Page 7 of 97



Ken Irwin 
January 23, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
  
 

{CW051904.2}  

1. Under California law, voter-approved initiatives must be amended by an initiative. 
 
Under California law, ordinances adopted by voter initiative generally cannot “be repealed or 
amended except by a vote of the people, unless provision otherwise be made in the ordinance.”1  
Thus the City Council cannot take action to rezone the Property, if the rezone would have the 
effect of repealing or amending the voter-approved PD 89-01. Any action that would have the 
effect of amending or repealing PD 89-01 must be brought by voter initiative. 
 

2. PD 89-01 does not prohibit development of the Property under the underlying zoning. 
 
Overlay zones are specialized zoning districts that supplement—but do not replace—the basic 
zoning regulations applicable to a property.2 Patterson’s zoning ordinance follows this common 
convention. Planned development overlay districts are “intended to allow modification of 
requirements established by other ordinances and diversification in the relationship of different 
uses, buildings, structures, lot sizes, and open spaces, while ensuring compliance with and 
implementation of the general plan.”3 Planned development overlay zones are therefore 
intended to supplement the underlying zoning designation of a particular parcel.  
 
The Property’s underlying zoning is “Medical Professional Offices” according to the City’s zoning 
map.4 The Medical Professional Offices zone is governed by Patterson Municipal Code Chapter 
18.42. Permitted uses in MPO zones include business support services, hospitals, bank and 
financial services, dental offices, and professional offices. Several other uses are permitted 
upon obtaining a conditional use permit including retail stores, restaurants, and hotels.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
Although PD 89-01 cannot be repealed or amended without voter approval, as an overlay district, 
PD 89-01 does not restrict development of the Property into any of the permitted or 
conditionally permitted uses allowed by Patterson Municipal Code Chapter 18.42. Development 
of the Property may therefore proceed consistent with the underlying MPO zone. An applicant 
may therefore submit an application that is consistent with PD 89-01, specifically, or with the 
Medical Professional Office zone, more generally. Any action to rezone the property in a manner 
that would prohibit development of the property consistent with PD 89-01, such as a residential 
rezone, would first require approval by voter initiative.  

                                                      
1 Elec. Code, § 9217; see also, DeVita v. County of Napa (1995) 9 Cal.4th 763, holding that Napa County 
could not amend its general plan if the amendment would rescind a voter-approved element regarding 
the preservation of agricultural land. 
2 2 Rathkopf's The Law of Zoning and Planning § 21:68 (4th ed.) 
3 Patterson Municipal Code, § 18.54.020. 
4 See http://ca-patterson.civicplus.com/DocumentCenter/View/165 

July 17, 2023 - Page 8 of 97



Facilities Planning 
for 

 
And  

 
 
 

February 26, 2018  

July 17, 2023 - Page 9 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 2/13 02/23/2018 

 

Del Puerto Health Care District 

The District’s Sphere of Influence (SOI) encompasses approximately 249,000 acres and includes a 
potential expansion area of approximately 15,000 acres located in San Joaquin County. This area was 
included in the SOI because the District also draws patients from the Vernalis area in San Joaquin 
County, which, although not currently within the District’s boundaries, is closer to Patterson than the 
healthcare services available in the Tracy area. It should be noted, however, that the District’s SOI does 
not limit its service area, as the District also receives patients from areas outside this boundary, including 
the cities of Newman, Gustine, Modesto, Ceres, Turlock, and from as far as Tracy and Stockton.  

The District Office and Ambulance operations are located near central Patterson at the corner of E & 
Ninth Streets  

July 17, 2023 - Page 10 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 3/13 02/23/2018 

Mountain Valley Emergency Medical Services Agency Zone 5 – Assigned Response Area 

 

 

Patterson District Ambulance services Mountain Valley Emergency Medical Services Agency Zone 5 
which in the northwestern Stanislaus County encircling the City of Patterson. The southern one fifth of the 
county is services by West Side Community Health Care District 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 11 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 4/13 02/23/2018 

Current Facility Location 

 

 

The Current location is optimal to the center of current and future growth. 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 12 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 5/13 02/23/2018 

 

Proximity to City of Patterson Emergency Access Routes 

Patterson City General Plan Goals 
 
PS-9: To promote efficiency, convenience, and harmony in the siting of public facilities. 
 
PS-9.4 Facility clustering. The City shall promote the clustering of public and quasi-public 
facilities such as schools, parks, libraries, child care facilities, and community activity 
centers. The City shall promote joint-use of public facilities, and agreements for sharing 
costs and operational responsibilities among public service providers. 
 

In 1948, the location of the Patterson Hospital was established and since 1984, the District has operated 
Patterson District Ambulance from this location. The corner of E & 9th Streets is located one small block 
from Sperry Avenue which connects to Interstate 5. And yet still centered between within the north-
eastern and southwestern residential developments. 

As the population of Patterson and the West Side grows there will be need for additional and regionally 
located EMS stations. It is the goal of the District to enter into a joint-use agreement with West Stanislaus 
Fire Services and the City of Patterson to co-locate EMS posts at Fire Station #2 (at the corner of 
Keystone Pacific Pkwy. and Park Center Dr.) and any future Fire Stations, such as the one proposed 
(Hwy 33 and Olive Ave.) as part of the Villages of Patterson development. 

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 13 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 6/13 02/23/2018 

 

Patterson District Ambulance Requirements 

Patterson District Ambulance (PDA) staffs two 24-hour ALS ambulances at 875 E Street in Patterson.  
This location is a very good central location in the City of Patterson with good access to main roadways - 
Hwy 33 for north/south access, Las Palmas east, and Sperry west.  This location allows us the best 
opportunity to meet our urban response time requirements. 

There are four crew members on-duty at any given time.  It is common to have an intern or student rider 
with an ambulance crew.  Interns are with crews the entire 24-hour shift while students are generally 
limited to 12-hour day shifts. 

READY ROOM 
There needs to be a room large enough to accommodate 5 persons using recliner type chairs to watch 
TV or otherwise relax during down time between calls.  There needs to be space for a dry erase board 
and at least two bulletin boards.  Radio and pager chargers as well as spare batteries need to be 
accessible.  The existing facility space is too small. 

DINING ROOM 
The crews need a table area where they can eat their meals.  The existing facility does not have dining 
room space and depends on crew members using a shared counter space with the kitchen.  There are 
bar stools at the counter that frequently impede the travel path through the room to the apparatus bay. 

KITCHEN 
The existing kitchen area is small and has limited cabinet space and no pantry area to store food.  It is 
cramped if two people try to use the space at the same time.  The existing refrigerator is up against a wall 
that limits the opening of the refrigerator door.  A new facility needs a better kitchen layout with more work 
space plus cabinet and drawer storage space.  Room two refrigerators for adequate food storage and ice 
makers.  A dishwasher is required.  There should be enough space that trash and recycling can be stored 
out of sight. 

OFFICE SPACE 
There needs to be adequate space for crew members to have desk and computer access.  The office 
should have adequate file storage space, book shelfs, and crew member mailboxes.  Station alerting 
equipment including radios, an amplifier, and lighting and speaker control systems should most likely be 
located in this area. 

DORMATORY ROOMS 
The existing doom rooms are cramped due to two lockers in each of the four rooms.  The lockers should 
be moved out of the dorm rooms to male/female locker rooms.  There needs to be enough room for a 
chair and a night stand.  Need a minimum of 6 dorm rooms. 

BATHROOM / LOCKER ROOMS 
There should be male and female locker rooms.  There are currently 11 full-time paramedics and EMTs.  
There could be two additional full-time employees.  There should be at least two extra lockers in each 
locker room for part-time employees working a shift.  The bathrooms need vanity cabinets with adequate 
counter space and two sinks.  Bathrooms should allow for toilet and shower use without preventing use to 
sink/mirror space and lockers.  Shower areas need adequate space for a crew member to sit on a bench 
to dress and to have clothes quickly accessible out of the shower. 

EXERCISE/WORKOUT ROOM 
The current facility does not have any space for exercise equipment or machines.  We currently have an 
elliptical, a treadmill, and a weight machine/system.  A new facility should have enough space for this 
existing equipment at minimum and some floor space for stretching or other non-machine exercises. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 14 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 7/13 02/23/2018 

 
APPARATUS BAYS 
PDA currently has four ambulances and a supervisor SUV.  There is only apparatus bay space for two 
ambulances inside.  Between the existing facility and a new facility, all ambulances and the supervisor 
vehicle should be stored inside an apparatus bay.  There needs to be space for a washer and dryer, a 
utility sink with some counter space to clean equipment.  There needs to be space for automotive 
supplies, tools, a portable BBQ, and crew safety equipment that should not be stored inside ie: jackets, 
rain gear, rescue gloves, and helmets. 

MEDICATION / SUPPLY ROOM 
There needs to be a temperature-controlled room for medications and medical supplies.  This room is a 
good location for battery chargers. 

SUPPLY ROOM / MEDICAL WASTE ROOM 
There needs to be a room for general storage of equipment ie backboards, standby tents, tables, chairs.  
Medical waste needs to be secured pending pickup by a waste company. 

GENERAL STORAGE 
There is a general lack of storage space in the current ambulance station/crew quarters.  Space to store 
cleaning equipment, cleaning and station supplies, and repair parts and supplies, probably more. 

CREW PARKING 
Ambulance crews and interns should have secured parking.  There should be adequate parking for shift 
changes. 

OUTSIDE/EXTERIOR 
There should be a small patio area where crews can relax outside and BBQ rather than having to BBQ in 
the driveway. 

OTHER THOUGHTS 
Consider a small community room for community interaction walk-in patients, immunization clinics, or 
small community health related meetings. 

Access to the crew quarters without having to go through the apparatus bay.  A man door access to 
apparatus bay rather than depending on apparatus doors. 

Emergency power to be sized to allow near full, or near full, capacity use of facility - cooking, 
refrigerator(s), HVAC, lighting, alerting system, apparatus doors, lighting and general plugs so facility can 
remain operational in extended power outages. 

OFFICE SPACE 
Ambulance Director and QI person require offices.  Currently the QI person uses a corner of the 
classroom area without privacy. 

Current District offices include:  Admin Director/CEO, Human Resources, and general office staff with 
counter area and lobby.  A record and office supply room, break room and/or mini kitchen, bathroom – 
handicapped accessible.  A small classroom with storage space.  Could use at least one more office. 

 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 15 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 8/13 02/23/2018 

Land Expansion required proposed based on the current corner location of the 
ambulance/district office facility.  

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 16 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 9/13 02/23/2018 

Building Requirements – by area type  
 

Based on above requirements, a study was conducted by LDA Partners, to estimate the total 
square foot required for buildings, public and employee parking, crew quarters, training or 
community room, offices, equipment, and protected apparatus parking. 

 
 
 

Program A Prelim. Estimate OPT #1 

 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 17 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 10/13 02/23/2018 

 

1/30/2018 
        

Program A Preliminary Estimate OPTION #1 
       

Variable Grossing Factor 
       

  Program 
Heading Space Quantity Area Net 

Area 
Area 

Factor 
Gross 

SF 
Cost / 
Area 

Extended 
Cost 

1.00 Public Areas                 
    Community Room 1 750 750 1.25 937.5     
    Public RR 2 60 120 1.25 150     
    Public RR 2 60 120 1.25 150     

    Community Room 
Storage 

1 150 150 1.25 187.5 

    Clinic 1 200 200 1.25 250 
    Exam 2 200 400 1.25 500 
    Storage 1 100 100 1.25 125 
    Reception 1 150 150 1.25 187.5 
    Public Lobby 1 250 250 1.25 312.5 
    Workstation 2 100 200 1.25 250 

    Public Areas 
Subtotal         1,238 $ 315 $ 389,813 

  
2.00 Administrative 

Areas                 

    Public Reception 1 250 250 1.25 312.5     
    Staff Office 5 100 500 1.25 625     
    Director Office 2 150 300 1.25 375     

    Public RR‐ Single 
Occupancy 

1 65 65 1.25 81.25     

    Administrative  
Storage 

2 150 300 1.25 375     

    IT 1 100 100 1.25 125     
    Elect Room 1 200 200 1.25 250     
    MPOE 1 75 75 1.25 93.75     
    Janitor 1 75 75 1.25 93.75     
    Work Room 1 150 150 1.25 187.5     
    Men Restroom 1 125 125 1.25 156.25     
    Women Restroom 1 125 125 1.25 156.25     
    Mech Room 1 150 150 1.25 187.5     

    Administrative Areas 
Subtotal         3,019 $ 300 $ 905,625 

  
3.00 Staff Areas                 
    Chief Quarters 1 150 150 1.25 188     
    Crew Quarters 6 125 750 1.25 938     
    Ready room 1 700 700 1.25 875     
    Lockers Room‐ (men) 1 500 500 1.25 625     

    Lockers Room ‐ 
Women) 

1 500 500 1.25 625     

    Kitchen 1 300 300 1.25 375     
    Pantry 1 50 50 1.25 63     
    Dining Area 1 300 300 1.25 375     
    Exercise 1 350 350 1.25 438     
    Dispatch 1 50 50 1.25 63     
    Medical Cabinet 1 25 25 1.25 31     
    General Storage 2 100 200 1.25 250     
    Medical Enclosure 1 80 80 1.25 100     
    Laundry 1 150 150 1.25 188     
                    

    Staff Areas Subtotal         5,131 $ 350 $ 
1,795,938 

  
4.00 Vehicle                 
    SUV 1 175 175 1.50 262.5     
    Front Line Ambulance 2 475 950 1.50 712.5     
    Reserve Ambulance 3 280 840 1.50 420     
    Future Ambulance 1 290 290 1.50 435     

July 17, 2023 - Page 18 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 11/13 02/23/2018 

    Emergency trailer 
(exterior) 

1 145 145 0.00 0     

    Engine (3/0 staffing) 1 146 146 1.50 219     

    
10 KW portable 
generator on wheels 
(exterior) 

1 50 50 0.00 0 
    

    Vehicle Subtotal         2,049 $ 200 $ 409,800 
  
5.00 Equipment                 
    Workshop 1 200 200 1.25 250     
    Turnout / Gear Storage 1 100 100 1.25 125     
    Equip Storage 1 275 275 1.25 343.75     
    Decontamination 1 85 85 1.25 106.25     
    Equipment Subtotal         825 $ 200 $ 165,000 

    Total Building         12,262   $ 
3,256,375 

  
6.00 Site                 

    General Site 1 47,600 47,600 1 47,600 $ 
25.00 

$ 
1,190,000 

    Exterior Patio 1 500 500 1 500 $ 
45.00 

$ 22,500 

    Utilities 1 100,000 100,000 1 100,000 $ 4.50 $ 450,000 

    Total Site             $ 
1,662,500 

  CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL   $ 
4,918,875 

HA
RD

 C
O

ST
S 

HARD COSTS     
General Conditions         10.0% $491,888 
General Requirements, Overhead         2.0% $98,378 
Profit         5.0% $245,944 
Bonds         1.0% $49,189 
Estimating Contingency         3.0% $147,566 
TOTAL PROJECT HARD COST   $ 

5,951,839 

SO
FT

 C
O

ST
S 

SOFT COSTS 
Design Fees         8.5% $ 505,906 
Materials Testing         1.0% $ 59,518 
Geotech         L/S $ 10,000 
Permit Fees         LS $ 75,000 
Misc Utility Fee Allowance         LS $ 50,000 
FFE         L/S $ 200,000 
Contingency         3.0% $ 178,555 

  TOTAL PROJECT SOFT COST   $ 
1,078,980 

TOTAL PROJECT COST   $ 
7,030,819 

 

 

 

 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 19 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 12/13 02/23/2018 

 

Conceptual Drawings – Orientation Not Accurate 
 

July 17, 2023 - Page 20 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 13/13 02/23/2018 

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 21 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 22 of 97



 
 

 
In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability. 

(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs). To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W. Washington, D.C. 
20250-9410, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice), or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). 

 
A Public Entity Providing Health Care Services 

P.O. Box 187 
Patterson, CA. 95363 

Phone 209-892-8781 
Fax 209-892-3755 

TO:    Board of Directors 

FROM:   Karin Hennings, Administrative Director / CEO 
  Paul Willette, Director of Ambulance Operations 

DATE:    April 27, 2018 

RE:    Facilities Planning and Development at Del Puerto Health Care District 

On February 26, 2018 the Board discussed at a draft Facilities Planning Report within which, the District 
has identified a project and proposed site that meets the goals of the City of Patterson General Plan PS-9, 
promoting the efficiency, convenience, and harmony in the siting of public facilities as well as PS-9.4 
Facilities Clustering.  HS-4.2 identifies emergency access routes and ensures they are kept free from traffic 
impediment. The property APN # 0131-024-007, located adjacent to the District’s Ambulance and District 
Headquarters; which itself is located at 875 E Street where it intersects 9th Street in the City of Patterson, 
CA. 

The District has operated in this location since 1959. The current site is ideal for is central location within 
the District boundaries, population mass, and access to emergency routes. This property is attached to 
existing District owned land and buildings. The property is currently vacant and zoned specifically for 
medical use.  

On August 21, 2017, at a Special Board Meeting of the District’s Board of Directors, a closed session 
agenda item was posted with proper notice to discuss price and terms of a potential real estate transaction 
for the purchase of the property or portion of the property in question.  While no decision was made, or vote 
taken, direction was given to staff.  Pursuant to that direction, the District contracted for services with LDA 
Partners, Designers & Architects to assist in development of a more detailed project description, establish 
building and land square footage requirements, and to submit a conceptual site plan that would address 
the needs of the District for development of clustered public facilities in proximity to the current District 
Headquarters.  

We will review the Facilities Planning Report in detail and provide copies of our formal presentation at the 
April 30, 2018 Regular Board Meeting.  Meanwhile a copy of the Facilities Planning Report you received 
on February 26, 2018 is included in the Agenda Packet under Item 8.B. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 23 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 24 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 25 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 26 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 27 of 97



N
30

°0
0'

00
"W

N59°59'30"E

S59°58'58"W

S59°58'58"W170.00'

N
30

°0
1'

02
"W

28
0.

00
'

27.50'

S
30

°0
0'

00
"E

17
5.

50
'

S59°58'58"W
108.50'

N75°54'42"W
47.42'

N30°01'02"W
71.50'

10
4.

50
'

E    STREET

9T
H

   
 S

TR
E

E
T

1

1

odellengineering.com

of
1165 Scenic Drive, Suite A

Modesto, CA 95350

July 17, 2023 - Page 28 of 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PROPERTY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL A 45-PM-71

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RECIPROCAL ACCESS EASEMENT DOC. NO. 094670 NOV 7, 2000, STANISLAUS COUNTY RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWESTERLY LINE PARCEL 45-PM-71

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION: PROPOSED PROPERTY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB 23, 2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
34330

AutoCAD SHX Text
34330 LW.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON IS BASED OFF RECORD DATA. NO FIELD SURVEY WAS PERFORMED. THIS EXHIBIT IS FOR REFERENCE ONLY



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 1

Facilities Planning for

and

February 26, 2018
Updated January 2021

Original Hospital

1

2

July 17, 2023 - Page 29 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 2

Property Split for Ambulance

Ambulance Building

3

4

July 17, 2023 - Page 30 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 3

Sg Ft
Admin and Crew Quarters  2,986
Apparatus & Equipment 1,675
Total Current Building 4,661
Total Current Lot 14,325 

Facility Breakdown

Future Capacity
Requirements

5

6

July 17, 2023 - Page 31 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 4

Ambulance 24 hour Crew Needs
• Dormitory Rooms
• Bathroom/Locker Rooms
• Kitchen
• Ready Room
• Dining Room
• Crew Office Space
• Secure Crew Parking
• Exercise/Workout Room
• Exterior BBQ Patio

Equipment & Office
• Apparatus Bays
• Medication / Medical Supply Room
• Medical Waste Room
• General Storage
• Ambulance Offices (2) 
• District Offices (5)
• Record / office supply room
• Staff break room 
• Bathrooms – handicapped accessible. 

7

8

July 17, 2023 - Page 32 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 5

Community Use
• Community Room

• Meetings
• Training
• Community Education 

• Small Clinic or Exam Room
• Possible night-time access to mid-level care
• Flu Shot Clinics

• Emergency Services Center

Building Space Requirements
Space Sq Ft

Public Areas 1,238

Administrative Areas 3,019

Crew Areas 5,131

Apparatus / Equipment Area 2,049

Total Building 12,262

9

10

July 17, 2023 - Page 33 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 6

Proposed 
Site Layout

• Building 

• Public Parking

• Vehicle Yard

• Staff Parking

• Driveway

• Grounds

Lot Size Requirements

Architectural Projection Sq Ft

Total Building Size 12,262

Public Parking, Vehicle Yard, Grounds 35,338

Total Land Requirement 47,600

11

12

July 17, 2023 - Page 34 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 7

Sq Ft

Necessary Site 47,600

Original lot -14,325 

Required 33,275

Additional Land Required

Recorded with County

• November 2020

Land Acquisition Completed

13

14

July 17, 2023 - Page 35 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 8

Next Steps
Land

Finance
Engineering/Design

Construction

“Ground” Work

Land Survey
• Establish Property Lines
• Place Memorial Markers
• Register with County

City
• Petition lot line adjustment

15

16

July 17, 2023 - Page 36 of 97



Board of Directors Presentation 1/25/2021

Del Puerto Health Care District 9

“Financing” for Project

• Contract with Municipal Advisors
• Disclosures
• Policies
• Get Rated (Standard & Poors) for Bond interest
• Approved
• Get Issue

Engineering & Design
• Professional Services (RFP)

• Engineering
• Design of Building/Campus

• Construction
• Bid of Public Works Project

*Opportunity for Design/Build?

17

18

July 17, 2023 - Page 37 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 38 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care 
District

Ambulance District Head Quarters

July 17, 2023 - Page 39 of 97



The Construction Process…

Idea

•What is the need that we are 
trying to fill?

•Owners Basis of Design

Idea

•What is the need that we are 
trying to fill?

•Owners Basis of Design

Planning

•Conceptual Drawings

•Design Drawings

•Construction Drawings

•Financing

•Permitting

Planning

•Conceptual Drawings

•Design Drawings

•Construction Drawings

•Financing

•Permitting

Bidding

•GC and Subcontractor solicitations

•Confirmation of Financing

•Contracting

Bidding

•GC and Subcontractor solicitations

•Confirmation of Financing

•Contracting

Construction

•Breaking Ground

•Construction Administration & Coordination

•Submittal/RFI Process

•Changes in Scope

•Weekly Meetings

Construction

•Breaking Ground

•Construction Administration & Coordination

•Submittal/RFI Process

•Changes in Scope

•Weekly Meetings

Close Out

•Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

•System Startup’s

•IT Integration

•Final Occupancy from City/County

•Construction Financing transition to Permanent 
Financing

•Move in 

Close Out

•Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

•System Startup’s

•IT Integration

•Final Occupancy from City/County

•Construction Financing transition to Permanent 
Financing

•Move in 

Maintenance

•Ongoing Building Maintenance

•Warranties

•City and County Required Maintenance

•Back Flow Preventer inspections, Five Year Fire 
Sprinkler Certifications, ETC. 

Maintenance

•Ongoing Building Maintenance

•Warranties

•City and County Required Maintenance

•Back Flow Preventer inspections, Five Year Fire 
Sprinkler Certifications, ETC. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 40 of 97



Hard Bid (Design-Bid-Build)

This version provides multiple General Contractors (GC’s) with a set of 
fully developed and complete bidding documents.

Pros Cons

Competitive in nature Potentially adversarial relationship with 
the GC, Client, Architect

Specific and complete set of instructions 
and expectations. Very little ‘grey area’

Design issue change orders

Great for the ‘cookie cutter’ projects No controls of design costs

Fixed-Price style contract Final pricing might not be in alignment 
with Owner’s project budget

Very little opportunity to expedite 
construction

July 17, 2023 - Page 41 of 97



Design-Build
In this version, the GC will manage the entire process, including design, from the concept to owner 
move in.

Pros Cons

Updated pricing throughout the design 
process

No need to for this with ‘cookie-cutter’ 
style projects.

Zero design related issue change orders No competitive bidding for multiple GC’s. 
GC selection process made during 
planning phase

Flexibility with design as it relates to costs

Informed decision making process

Front end value engineering

Earlier construction starts

Team style relationship with Owner, GC, 
Architect

Cost conscience design management

Generally, open-book style contract (with 
GMP)

July 17, 2023 - Page 42 of 97



From: Karin Hennings
To: "Karin Hennings"
Cc: Paul Willette (Paul.Willette@DPHealth.org)
Bcc: Anne Stokman (astokman@csustan.edu); Becky Campo (rvcampo@hotmail.com); David G. Ritchie

(dritchie@colehuber.com); Gallo Mac Master (MVP95363@outlook.com); Jose Rodriguez
(Jose.Rodriguez@dphealth.org); Luis Avila (avila_luis@hotmail.com); Steve Pittson (pittson@me.com)

Subject: Meeting with City Planning Department
Date: Wednesday, May 5, 2021 2:19:00 PM
Attachments: Attachment-2504.pdf

Dear All,
 
Paul and I met with City of Patterson Manager, Ken Irwin, David James (Community Development),
Fernando Ulloa (Civic engineer/planner, and Joel Andrews (City Planner) on a Zoom meeting yesterday
afternoon, Tuesday, May 4.
 
It was a productive introduction of our pending project and we were able to share the history of acquiring
the property, the scope of the project, and our consideration of the design-build process (which they
highly recommended).
 
The City was very appreciative that we had reached out in the early stages of the project and took us
through some of the phases that involve the City including:

zoning approval (they acknowledged we are already zoned correctly),
architectural review and site plan due process (how the project interfaces with the streets, etc)
building department review (planning and public works)

 
The City has initiated a Public Safety Committee which the District is invited to be an observer along with
Fire and Policy.  The Public Safety Committee is looking years to the future about the needs of the
community.
 
The City is also building for the future with a Public Safety Center project (see attached PDF) that is
slated for downtown. This City is having a feasibility study conducted by LDA Partners (the Stockton
Architectural firm that we use in our initial study).
 
The City Planning Personnel are preparing a presentation for our Board meeting on June 28, 2021 on the
planning process and other information pertinent to our project.
 
Karin Freese Hennings
Chief Executive Officer
Administrative Director
 
karin.hennings@dphealth.org
209.894.8201 direct

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 43 of 97

mailto:karin.freese@dphealth.org
mailto:Karin.Hennings@dphealth.org
mailto:Paul.Willette@DPHealth.org
mailto:astokman@csustan.edu
mailto:rvcampo@hotmail.com
mailto:dritchie@colehuber.com
mailto:dritchie@colehuber.com
mailto:MVP95363@outlook.com
mailto:Jose.Rodriguez@dphealth.org
mailto:Jose.Rodriguez@dphealth.org
mailto:avila_luis@hotmail.com
mailto:pittson@me.com
mailto:karin.hennings@dphealth.org



Feasibility Study for
Public Safety Center


222 Central Court Stockton, CA 95204


City for Patterson


April 20, 2021







LDAPARTNERS 2City of Patterson - Public Safety Center


Table of Contents


Cover Page 00


02


03


07


11


13


17


Table of Contents


Narrative


Program


Site Plans


Floor Plans


Exterior Elevations & Renderings 







LDAPARTNERS 3City of Patterson - Public Safety Center


Narrative







Public Safety Center
The purpose of this Feasibility Study is to evaluate and determine the potential for development of a Public Safety Center (PSC), joint 


facility, on property in proximity of the Patterson City Hall. Requested services included: 


• Space Needs Assessment Review and Update


Review of prior studies and assessment of the current and future space needs of the joint facility accommodating both the 
Fire Administration and Law Enforcement – Administration and Operations.


• Site Evaluation


Evaluation of the propose site to determine the capacity for building and site development.


• Schematic Design


Development of schematic design drawings composed of site plan, floor plans, exterior elevations, and rendering(s) presenting 
functional and aesthetic responses to the design criteria.


• Estimate of Probable Cost


Detail of costs for site development, building construction, and construction of bridge linking the PSC to City Hall. To be 
determined. 


OVERVIEW 


Programming 


The first step in developing the project is the assessment of the current, desired, and future space needs. To this end the architect and 


Building and Capital Projects staff met and interviewed with the Fire Chief and Police Chief. In addition, the team toured and catalogued 


the Fire Department Administration Office and the Police Department Office. From the information and data acquired, the architect 


prepared a spreadsheet Program itemizing and quantifying the space needs of the Police and Fire Departments and supporting building 


infrastructure. Subsequent communications and meetings of all parties refined the program which resulted in determination of the space 


requirements and configuration. 


(Refer to Program, pages 7,8 & 9) 







LDAPARTNERS 5City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







LDAPARTNERS 6City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Program


LDAPARTNERS 7City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Space Program
Public Service Center Red: Dept


review


Position/Space Space Qty. Unit SF
SF to 


Factor
SF


No-Factor
GSF
Total Note


Internal 
Adjacencies


External 
Adjacencies Comments/Special Considerations


Red: Dept review
POLICE DEPARTMENT Department requires emergency power (UPS)
Administration


x Lobby 1 200 200 Fire if shared Seat 10, secured and hardened. (add seating for 4 if shared with Fire), med drop box


x Chief's Office PO5 1 384 384
x Ante Seating 2 15 30 Adj. to Chief
x Records Supv . Office PO2 1 120 120 Records Clerks
x Records Clerks WS4 3 80 240 Lobby Clerks oversee public counter. Ballistic resistant walls/doors/glazing adj. to Lobby
x Records Storage 1 70 70 7x10 Secure access


x Files 5 5 25 5 - 42" lateral files
x Copy/Work/Mail/Storage 1 150 150 Clerks
x Live Scan/CAD Command 1 80 80
x Public Restrooms 1 64 64 Lobby


Subtotal SF 1363 0
Net to Gross Factor - 1.5 2045 2,045


Community Services
x Officers WS3 4 64 256 2 current + 2 future. In one room. Personal locker at ea. Workstation


x Copy 1 50 50 Copy machine, storage cabinet


Subtotal SF 306 0
Net to Gross Factor - 1.5 459 459


Crime Prevention
x Crime Prevention Officer WS3 1 64 80 Personnal locker at ea. workstation
x Crime Reduction Unit WS3 2 64 128 Personnal locker at ea. workstation
x School Resource Officer WS3 2 64 128 Personnal locker at ea. workstation


x Copy/Storage 1 80 80 Copy machine & cabinet Storage


Subtotal SF 416 0
Net to Gross Factor - 1.5 624 624


Detectives
x Sergeants WS5 2 96 192 2 Sgts. share room, personnal locker at ea. workstation
x Detectives WS4 8 80 640 Arrange 4 & 4 on ea. side of room/monitoring at end wall, center layout counter, personal locker at ea. workstation
x Monitoring Counter 1 50 50 10 l.f. counter
x Layout/Conf Table 1 48 In center of room
x Clerks WS4 2 80 160 Can be off of reception area
x Interview Rooms 3 64 192 Controlled exiting access
x Soft Room 1 64 64 Controlled exiting access
x Equipment Room 1 56 56 7x8
x Copy 1 25 25 Copy machine


Subtotal SF 1427 0
Net to Gross Factor - 1.5 1855 1,855


Patrol Services
x Reporting Area - Sergeants WS5 4 96 384 Arrange 2 & 2 on ea. side of room/counter at end wall, center layout counter, personal locker at ea. workstation
x Counter 1 50 50 10 l.f. counter
x Layout/Conf Table 1 48 48 In center of room
x Copy 1 25 25 Copy machine
x Body Cams 1 25 25
x Briefing Room 1 375 375 Accommodate 25 @ 15s.f., AV, white/tack boards


x Patrol Eqpt. Storage 1 300 300
Subtotal SF 532 675
Net to Gross Factor - 1.5 798 1,473


Program - Police Department


LDAPARTNERS 8City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Program - Police Department


LDAPARTNERS 9City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Program - Fire Department
Space Program
Public Service Center


Position/Space Space Qty. Unit SF
SF to 


Factor
SF


No-Factor
GSF
Total Note


Internal 
Adjacencies


External 
Adjacencies Comments/Special Considerations


FIRE DEPARTMENT Department requires emergency power (UPS)
Administration


y Lobby 1 0 0 Police S.F. included in Police program if shared


y Chief's Office PO5 1 384 384
y Ante Seating 2 15 30 Chief's Office Adj. to Chief
y Administrative Mgr. PO3 1 196 196
y   Fire Prevention PO4 1 280 280 Incl. layout table & plan storage
y Div ision Chiefs PO3 3 196 588
y Admin. Assistant WS4 1 80 80 Lobby


y Consultant + 1 WS4 2 80 160


y Conference 1 300 0 300 15x20 Seating 12


y Files 5 5 25 5 - 42" lateral files
y File Room 1 120 120 Admin. Mgr. Secured Access
y Copy/Work/Mail/Storage 1 150 150 Admin. Mgr.
y Dept. Restrooms 2 64 128


y Public Restrooms 2 0 0 Lobby S.F. included in Police program if shared


Subtotal SF 2141 300
Net to Gross Factor - 1.5 3212 3,512


Department Support
y Break Room 1 180 180 Seat 8, sink/ref/micro/storage


y IT Room 1 50 0 50


y Custodial 1 50 0 50


y Storage 1 50 0 50


y Fitness Room & Lockers 1 0 0 Shared with Police, incuded in Police Program


y Main Mech/Elect Room 1 0 0 0 Incuded in Police Program


y IT/Elect Distribution Closet 1 0 0 0 Incuded in Police Program


y Fire Riser Room 1 0 0 0 Incuded in Police Program


Subtotal SF 180 150
Net to Gross Factor - 1.3 234 384


FIRE DEPARTMENT TOTAL 3,896


Program - Summary


LDAPARTNERS 10City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Site Plans


LDAPARTNERS 11City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







DEMOLITION SITE PLAN


LDAPARTNERS 12City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







LDAPARTNERS 13


SITE PLAN


City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Floor Plans


City of Patterson - Public Safety Center LDAPARTNERS 14







GROUND FLOOR PLAN


LDAPARTNERS 15City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







SECOND FLOOR PLAN


LDAPARTNERS 16City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







Exterior Elevations & 
Renderings


LDAPARTNERS 17City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







LDAPARTNERS 18City of Patterson - Public Safety Center


CONTEXT


PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION PROPOSED BUILDING LOCATION







EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


LDAPARTNERS 19City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







• exterior elevations
• Renderings


LDAPARTNERS 20City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







• exterior elevations
• Renderings


LDAPARTNERS 21City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







• exterior elevations
• Renderings


LDAPARTNERS 22City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







• exterior elevations
• Renderings


LDAPARTNERS 23City of Patterson - Public Safety Center







• exterior elevations
• Renderings


LDAPARTNERS 24City of Patterson - Public Safety Center





		Feasibility Study for

		Slide Number 2

		Narrative

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Program

		Program - Police Department

		Program - Police Department

		Program - Fire Department

		Site Plans

		Slide Number 12

		Slide Number 13

		Floor Plans

		Slide Number 15

		Slide Number 16

		Exterior Elevations &  Renderings

		CONTEXT

		Slide Number 19

		Slide Number 20

		Slide Number 21

		Slide Number 22

		Slide Number 23

		Slide Number 24

		Cost Estimate

		Slide Number 26

		Slide Number 27

		Slide Number 28

		Slide Number 29

		Slide Number 30

		Slide Number 31

		Slide Number 32

		Slide Number 33

		Slide Number 34

		Slide Number 35

		Slide Number 36

		Slide Number 37

		Slide Number 38

		Q & A









July 17, 2023 - Page 44 of 97



6/30/2021

1

Del Puerto Health Care 
District Building Process

June 28, 2021

Process

 Planning Review
 Improvement Plans
 Building Permit
 Other Permits

 It is our intention this 
evening to walk the 
District through the 
various steps involved 
in the process 
beginning with the initial 
submittal through to the 
construction phase. 

1

2

July 17, 2023 - Page 45 of 97



6/30/2021

2

Initial Reaction

 Nice architectural approach
 Good for community
 Outdoor yard
 Fencing

Planning Review

 Architectural and Site Plan Review
 City staff and other relevant agencies provide comment

 Planning Commission review and approval

 2-4 month time from complete application submittal

 CEQA – likely exempt

 $1,290 application fee

3

4

July 17, 2023 - Page 46 of 97



6/30/2021

3

Improvement Plans

 Review Schedule Timing of 5-10 Days
 Civil Onsite/Offsite Improvement plans
 Landscape/Irrigation plans

 Fees
 Plan Review - $5,000*-$10,000*
 Inspection Fees - $7,500*

Building Permit 

 Review Schedule Timing of 5-10 Days
 Building plans

 Structural, Mechanical, Electrical, Other
 Structural Calculations
 Soils Report

 Fees (assuming a 5,000sf building)
 Building - $4,500*
 Plan Check - $3,000*
 Connections & Impact Fees

 TBD (Refer to Estimated Dev. Fee Schedule)

5

6

July 17, 2023 - Page 47 of 97



6/30/2021

4

Other permits

 Encroachment Permit
 $98.82

 Grading Permit
 $500*

Questions?

7

8

July 17, 2023 - Page 48 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 9/13 02/23/2018 

Building Requirements – by area type  
 

Based on above requirements, a study was conducted by LDA Partners, to estimate the total 
square foot required for buildings, public and employee parking, crew quarters, training or 
community room, offices, equipment, and protected apparatus parking. 

 
 
 

Program A Prelim. Estimate OPT #1 

 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 49 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 50 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 6/13 02/23/2018 

 

Patterson District Ambulance Requirements 

Patterson District Ambulance (PDA) staffs two 24-hour ALS ambulances at 875 E Street in Patterson.  
This location is a very good central location in the City of Patterson with good access to main roadways - 
Hwy 33 for north/south access, Las Palmas east, and Sperry west.  This location allows us the best 
opportunity to meet our urban response time requirements. 

There are four crew members on-duty at any given time.  It is common to have an intern or student rider 
with an ambulance crew.  Interns are with crews the entire 24-hour shift while students are generally 
limited to 12-hour day shifts. 

READY ROOM 
There needs to be a room large enough to accommodate 5 persons using recliner type chairs to watch 
TV or otherwise relax during down time between calls.  There needs to be space for a dry erase board 
and at least two bulletin boards.  Radio and pager chargers as well as spare batteries need to be 
accessible.  The existing facility space is too small. 

DINING ROOM 
The crews need a table area where they can eat their meals.  The existing facility does not have dining 
room space and depends on crew members using a shared counter space with the kitchen.  There are 
bar stools at the counter that frequently impede the travel path through the room to the apparatus bay. 

KITCHEN 
The existing kitchen area is small and has limited cabinet space and no pantry area to store food.  It is 
cramped if two people try to use the space at the same time.  The existing refrigerator is up against a wall 
that limits the opening of the refrigerator door.  A new facility needs a better kitchen layout with more work 
space plus cabinet and drawer storage space.  Room two refrigerators for adequate food storage and ice 
makers.  A dishwasher is required.  There should be enough space that trash and recycling can be stored 
out of sight. 

OFFICE SPACE 
There needs to be adequate space for crew members to have desk and computer access.  The office 
should have adequate file storage space, book shelfs, and crew member mailboxes.  Station alerting 
equipment including radios, an amplifier, and lighting and speaker control systems should most likely be 
located in this area. 

DORMATORY ROOMS 
The existing doom rooms are cramped due to two lockers in each of the four rooms.  The lockers should 
be moved out of the dorm rooms to male/female locker rooms.  There needs to be enough room for a 
chair and a night stand.  Need a minimum of 6 dorm rooms. 

BATHROOM / LOCKER ROOMS 
There should be male and female locker rooms.  There are currently 11 full-time paramedics and EMTs.  
There could be two additional full-time employees.  There should be at least two extra lockers in each 
locker room for part-time employees working a shift.  The bathrooms need vanity cabinets with adequate 
counter space and two sinks.  Bathrooms should allow for toilet and shower use without preventing use to 
sink/mirror space and lockers.  Shower areas need adequate space for a crew member to sit on a bench 
to dress and to have clothes quickly accessible out of the shower. 

EXERCISE/WORKOUT ROOM 
The current facility does not have any space for exercise equipment or machines.  We currently have an 
elliptical, a treadmill, and a weight machine/system.  A new facility should have enough space for this 
existing equipment at minimum and some floor space for stretching or other non-machine exercises. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 51 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 7/13 02/23/2018 

 
APPARATUS BAYS 
PDA currently has four ambulances and a supervisor SUV.  There is only apparatus bay space for two 
ambulances inside.  Between the existing facility and a new facility, all ambulances and the supervisor 
vehicle should be stored inside an apparatus bay.  There needs to be space for a washer and dryer, a 
utility sink with some counter space to clean equipment.  There needs to be space for automotive 
supplies, tools, a portable BBQ, and crew safety equipment that should not be stored inside ie: jackets, 
rain gear, rescue gloves, and helmets. 

MEDICATION / SUPPLY ROOM 
There needs to be a temperature-controlled room for medications and medical supplies.  This room is a 
good location for battery chargers. 

SUPPLY ROOM / MEDICAL WASTE ROOM 
There needs to be a room for general storage of equipment ie backboards, standby tents, tables, chairs.  
Medical waste needs to be secured pending pickup by a waste company. 

GENERAL STORAGE 
There is a general lack of storage space in the current ambulance station/crew quarters.  Space to store 
cleaning equipment, cleaning and station supplies, and repair parts and supplies, probably more. 

CREW PARKING 
Ambulance crews and interns should have secured parking.  There should be adequate parking for shift 
changes. 

OUTSIDE/EXTERIOR 
There should be a small patio area where crews can relax outside and BBQ rather than having to BBQ in 
the driveway. 

OTHER THOUGHTS 
Consider a small community room for community interaction walk-in patients, immunization clinics, or 
small community health related meetings. 

Access to the crew quarters without having to go through the apparatus bay.  A man door access to 
apparatus bay rather than depending on apparatus doors. 

Emergency power to be sized to allow near full, or near full, capacity use of facility - cooking, 
refrigerator(s), HVAC, lighting, alerting system, apparatus doors, lighting and general plugs so facility can 
remain operational in extended power outages. 

OFFICE SPACE 
Ambulance Director and QI person require offices.  Currently the QI person uses a corner of the 
classroom area without privacy. 

Current District offices include:  Admin Director/CEO, Human Resources, and general office staff with 
counter area and lobby.  A record and office supply room, break room and/or mini kitchen, bathroom – 
handicapped accessible.  A small classroom with storage space.  Could use at least one more office. 

 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 52 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 10/13 02/23/2018 

 

1/30/2018 
        

Program A Preliminary Estimate OPTION #1 
       

Variable Grossing Factor 
       

  Program 
Heading Space Quantity Area Net 

Area 
Area 

Factor 
Gross 

SF 
Cost / 
Area 

Extended 
Cost 

1.00 Public Areas                 
    Community Room 1 750 750 1.25 937.5     
    Public RR 2 60 120 1.25 150     
    Public RR 2 60 120 1.25 150     

    Community Room 
Storage 

1 150 150 1.25 187.5 

    Clinic 1 200 200 1.25 250 
    Exam 2 200 400 1.25 500 
    Storage 1 100 100 1.25 125 
    Reception 1 150 150 1.25 187.5 
    Public Lobby 1 250 250 1.25 312.5 
    Workstation 2 100 200 1.25 250 

    Public Areas 
Subtotal         1,238 $ 315 $ 389,813 

  
2.00 Administrative 

Areas                 

    Public Reception 1 250 250 1.25 312.5     
    Staff Office 5 100 500 1.25 625     
    Director Office 2 150 300 1.25 375     

    Public RR‐ Single 
Occupancy 

1 65 65 1.25 81.25     

    Administrative  
Storage 

2 150 300 1.25 375     

    IT 1 100 100 1.25 125     
    Elect Room 1 200 200 1.25 250     
    MPOE 1 75 75 1.25 93.75     
    Janitor 1 75 75 1.25 93.75     
    Work Room 1 150 150 1.25 187.5     
    Men Restroom 1 125 125 1.25 156.25     
    Women Restroom 1 125 125 1.25 156.25     
    Mech Room 1 150 150 1.25 187.5     

    Administrative Areas 
Subtotal         3,019 $ 300 $ 905,625 

  
3.00 Staff Areas                 
    Chief Quarters 1 150 150 1.25 188     
    Crew Quarters 6 125 750 1.25 938     
    Ready room 1 700 700 1.25 875     
    Lockers Room‐ (men) 1 500 500 1.25 625     

    Lockers Room ‐ 
Women) 

1 500 500 1.25 625     

    Kitchen 1 300 300 1.25 375     
    Pantry 1 50 50 1.25 63     
    Dining Area 1 300 300 1.25 375     
    Exercise 1 350 350 1.25 438     
    Dispatch 1 50 50 1.25 63     
    Medical Cabinet 1 25 25 1.25 31     
    General Storage 2 100 200 1.25 250     
    Medical Enclosure 1 80 80 1.25 100     
    Laundry 1 150 150 1.25 188     
                    

    Staff Areas Subtotal         5,131 $ 350 $ 
1,795,938 

  
4.00 Vehicle                 
    SUV 1 175 175 1.50 262.5     
    Front Line Ambulance 2 475 950 1.50 712.5     
    Reserve Ambulance 3 280 840 1.50 420     
    Future Ambulance 1 290 290 1.50 435     

July 17, 2023 - Page 53 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District 

o:\facilities\875 e street expansion\ambulance & district head quarters plan r3.docx 11/13 02/23/2018 

    Emergency trailer 
(exterior) 

1 145 145 0.00 0     

    Engine (3/0 staffing) 1 146 146 1.50 219     

    
10 KW portable 
generator on wheels 
(exterior) 

1 50 50 0.00 0 
    

    Vehicle Subtotal         2,049 $ 200 $ 409,800 
  
5.00 Equipment                 
    Workshop 1 200 200 1.25 250     
    Turnout / Gear Storage 1 100 100 1.25 125     
    Equip Storage 1 275 275 1.25 343.75     
    Decontamination 1 85 85 1.25 106.25     
    Equipment Subtotal         825 $ 200 $ 165,000 

    Total Building         12,262   $ 
3,256,375 

  
6.00 Site                 

    General Site 1 47,600 47,600 1 47,600 $ 
25.00 

$ 
1,190,000 

    Exterior Patio 1 500 500 1 500 $ 
45.00 

$ 22,500 

    Utilities 1 100,000 100,000 1 100,000 $ 4.50 $ 450,000 

    Total Site             $ 
1,662,500 

  CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL   $ 
4,918,875 

HA
RD

 C
O

ST
S 

HARD COSTS     
General Conditions         10.0% $491,888 
General Requirements, Overhead         2.0% $98,378 
Profit         5.0% $245,944 
Bonds         1.0% $49,189 
Estimating Contingency         3.0% $147,566 
TOTAL PROJECT HARD COST   $ 

5,951,839 

SO
FT

 C
O

ST
S 

SOFT COSTS 
Design Fees         8.5% $ 505,906 
Materials Testing         1.0% $ 59,518 
Geotech         L/S $ 10,000 
Permit Fees         LS $ 75,000 
Misc Utility Fee Allowance         LS $ 50,000 
FFE         L/S $ 200,000 
Contingency         3.0% $ 178,555 

  TOTAL PROJECT SOFT COST   $ 
1,078,980 

TOTAL PROJECT COST   $ 
7,030,819 

 

 

 

 

 

  

July 17, 2023 - Page 54 of 97



Across the nation, the delivery of health care services is undergoing a period of 
transformation. Much of this change is being driven by The Affordable Care Act 
signed into law in 2010. 

Many hospital facilities in California are aging and 
need to be renovated or replaced in order to address 
the evolving regulatory and insurance environment, 
seismic upgrades for acute care facilities required 
under California law or other needs in the community. 
Health care districts in California are authorized 
to incur various types of debt, including general 
obligation bonds that are paid from ad valorem 
property taxes levied on property within the district, 
as well as debt secured by district revenues. The 
issuance of bonds or incurrence of other debt by 
health care districts involves the interplay of a number 
of laws, including California statutes, the California 
Constitution, federal securities laws and federal 
tax laws. 

General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are voter-approved long-
term debt instruments which are secured by the legal 
obligation to levy and collect ad valorem property 
taxes sufficient to pay annual debt service on the 
bonds. Because general obligation bonds are secured 
by the taxing power of the health care district, they 
are considered to pose the lowest risk to the investor 
and, therefore, provide the lowest borrowing cost to 
the health care district when compared to any of the 
other types of debt financing that a health care district 
is authorized to use under California law.

By voting to approve a general obligation bond 
measure, voters are also approving an increase in 
ad valorem property taxes sufficient to pay the debt 
service on the bonds. Thus, this financing technique 
incorporates the means for its own repayment, 

and general obligation bonds should not cause 
any reduction in other health care district financial 
resources. However, voter approval must be obtained 
and, with the rise of scrutiny over municipal finance 
practices, it is essential to have a defendable bond 
program to gain such approval. Components of a 
defendable program include a clear need to build, 
expand or modernize facilities, a specific project list 
to be financed and accountability measures (e.g., 
independent audits and citizen oversight). 

orrick.com

California Health Care District  
Financing Techniques

July 17, 2023 - Page 55 of 97



Voter approval of a bond measure creates what 
has sometimes been called a “contract” between 
the health care district and the voters. While this 
“contract” is not a separate document of the 
financing, it nevertheless limits the health care 
district’s authority with respect to the bonds. 
This agreement with the voters consists of the 
constitutional and statutory law authorizing 
the election and the issuance of the bonds, the 
resolution calling the election and the specific 
language contained in the ballot measure itself. 
The assenting vote of the electorate completes the 
agreement. 

If a ballot measure is too specific with regard to 
the projects to be financed (e.g., “construction of 
a hospital on Jefferson Street”), the health care 
district board may be bound to build what it has 
promised to the voters and may not be able to 
change its plans (e.g., “construction of a hospital 
on Main Street”) in the future despite changes in 
health care district priorities or circumstances. 
Accordingly, when drafting a ballot measure and 
resolution calling an election, health care districts 
must carefully balance the need for specificity and 
the desire for flexibility to ensure that the measure is 
specific enough to permit the bond proceeds to be 
used for their intended purposes without eliminating 
all flexibility of the health care district to handle 
changing priorities or circumstances. 

Accordingly, the preparation of a bond measure 
requires a deliberate balancing of a number of 
important factors to help the likelihood that the 
measure attracts sufficient votes to pass while 
preserving flexibility for the health care district to 
handle changing circumstances. It is critical that 
a health care district review its various options 
and any proposed bond with competent counsel 
and other advisors prior to placing a measure on 
the ballot.

orrick.com

Debt Secured By District Revenues 

Health care districts are also authorized by California 
law to incur various forms of debt that are payable 
from revenues of the district. These revenue-based 
forms of debt carry a higher interest rate than general 
obligation bonds, but do not require voter approval. 
In addition, the specific statutes authorizing debt 
secured by district revenues can limit the borrowing 
size and the term of the debt. 

Federal Tax-Exemption 

While the issuance of bonds or incurrence of debt by 
health care districts is a matter of California law, the 
exclusion of interest on such obligations from income 
for purposes of federal income taxation is governed 
by federal tax law. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
and the regulations thereunder, contain an intricate 
set of requirements that must be complied with in 
order for a health care district to issue bonds or other 
debt that are tax-exempt. Additionally, in order for 
the bonds or other debt to retain their tax-exemption, 
the health care district must continue to comply with 
certain requirements after the bonds or other debt are 
issued or incurred.

The benefit of issuing tax-exempt debt is that 
tax-exempt financing offers lower interest rates than 
taxable debt. Because interest paid on tax-exempt 
debt is exempt from federal income tax (and the 
income tax of California), the investor requires less 
interest to produce the same after-tax return as 
taxable debt would produce. The difference varies 
from time to time based on market factors but is 
usually 2 to 4 percentage points less than comparable 
taxable debt. Given the current low interest rate 
environment, the difference between tax-exempt 
and taxable rates is smaller, around 1 to 2 percentage 
points. In any event, lower interest rates reduce the 
debt service payments to be made by the health 
care district.

July 17, 2023 - Page 56 of 97



For example, interest rates on 30-year general 
obligation bonds sold around May 1, 2016 were 
roughly as follows:

Ratings1 Tax-Exempt Bonds Revenue Bonds

AAA

AA

A

BBB

2.61%

2.81%

3.13%

3.45%

3.68%

3.76%

4.18%

4.84%

Federal Securities Law

The offering and sale of securities is regulated by 
federal laws codified primarily in the Securities Act 
of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) and the Securities 
and Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). 
Health care district general obligation bonds and 
revenue bonds constitute “securities” for purposes 
of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. For 
most corporate securities, a public offering must 
be preceded by filing a registration statement with 
the SEC pursuant to the Securities Act, and the 
corporation is required to make periodic reports to 
the SEC pursuant to the Exchange Act. Municipal 
securities, on the other hand, including those of 
health care districts, are exempt from the registration 
requirements of the Securities Act and from the 
reporting requirements of the Exchange Act. However, 
the offering and sale of health care district securities 
is not exempt from the anti-fraud provisions of the 
Securities Act or the Exchange Act. In addition, the 
SEC’s rules governing underwriters of municipal 
bonds effectively require health care districts to make 
periodic disclosure of certain information relevant to 
the security of their bonds unless certain exemptions 
apply. In contrast, if the form of debt incurred by the 
health care district does not constitute a security, but 
instead is treated as a loan, then the requirements of 
the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as well as the 
rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board of 
the SEC, do not apply.

Summary Comparison of Health Care District 
Financing Techniques

The following table illustrates the main financing 
techniques available to California health care districts 
as of May 2016. Nothing in this table should be 
construed or relied upon as legal advice. Instead, 
this chart is intended to serve as an overview of the 
financing options applicable to California health care 
districts, from which better informed requests for 
advice, legal and financial, can be formulated. Advice 
from competent counsel can help districts analyze 
which financing technique best suits the needs of the 
district.

orrick.com

For additional information concerning any 
health care district financing needs, please 
contact Jenna Magan or Don Field. Jenna and 
Don are partners with the global law firm of 
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP. Jenna 
focuses on all aspects of municipal and health 
care financing, including the issuance of 
general obligation bonds and revenue bonds 
by health care districts. Don has extensive 
experience—as both bond counsel and 
disclosure counsel—in the areas of general 
obligation bonds and election laws.

Contact Us

Jenna Magan
Sacramento
+1 916 329 7980
vcmagan@orrick.com

Don Field
Orange County
+1 949 852 7727
dfield@orrick.com

1 Ratings refer to independent appraisals of the credit quality of the bonds and the likelihood of their repayment 
performed by one or more of the credit rating agencies:  Standard & Poor’s Rating Services, Moody’s Investors 
Service or Fitch.  The ratings are expressed as letter grades AAA, AA, A, BBB (expressed as Aaa, Aa, A and Baa 
by Moody’s) from highest to lowest investment grade ratings, with +/- or numerical subcategories.  Ratings are 
considered very important by investors in determining what interest rates will induce them to purchase the 
bonds.  Bonds may be sold with or without a rating, although usually at materially higher interest rates.

July 17, 2023 - Page 57 of 97



orrick.com

General 
Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds

Certificates of 
Participation (COP)

Cal-Mortgage Insured 
Revenue Bonds2

Statutory Authority Health & Safety Code 
Section 32300 and 
following; Government 
Code Section 53506 
and following

Health & Safety Code 
Section 32315 and 
following

Health & Safety Code 
Section 32121

Health & Safety Code 
Sections 32127.2 and 
129000 and following 

What Can Be 
Financed?

Real property and 
improvements only (no 
equipment) described 
in ballot measure; 
costs of issuance and 
capitalized interest (no 
reserve fund)

Generally any real or 
personal property; 
costs of issuance; 
capitalized interest; 
reserve fund  

Generally any real or 
personal property; 
costs of issuance; 
capitalized interest; 
reserve fund

Generally any real or 
personal property; 
costs of issuance; 
capitalized interest; 
reserve fund; insurance 
costs

Are Additional 
Revenues Generated?

Yes, bonds payable 
from certain ad valorem 
property taxes

No, bonds payable from 
revenues of the District 

No, COPs payable from 
revenues of the District3

No, bonds payable from 
revenues of the District

Is Voter Approval 
Required?

Yes, at least 2/3rd of 
the qualified electors 
voting on the ballot 
measure

No, but resolution must 
be adopted by 4/5th of 
District board 

No No

What Is the Maximum 
Maturity?

40 years 40 years Useful life of property 
sold

30 years (subject to 
economic life of the 
health facility)

What Is the Maximum 
Interest Rate?

12% 12% Generally, none Generally, none

May Negotiated Sale 
Be Used?

Yes Yes, but bond purchase 
contract is subject to 
referendum

Yes Yes

What Are the 
Most Important 
Advantages?

Low cost; simplicity; 
self-supporting

Flexibility; no vote 
required

Flexibility; no vote 
required

Flexibility; no vote 
required; priced on 
credit of the State of 
California General 
Obligation Bonds

What Are the 
Most Important 
Disadvantages?

Vote required Higher interest cost 
than general obligation 
bonds; Referendum 
risk; principal amount 
limited to 50% of 
average of District’s 
gross revenues for last 
3 years

Higher interest cost 
than general obligation 
bonds; reserve 
fund, insurance and 
capitalized interest may 
be required

Reserve fund based on 
MADS and deed of trust 
on facilities required 
by Cal-Mortgage; 
insurance costs; 
covenants in regulatory 
agreement

2 Health care districts are also authorized to incur FHA insured debt under Health & Safety Code Section 32127.3.
3 COPs can be secured by parcel taxes with voter approval.  

SUMMARY COMPARISON OF HEALTH CARE DISTRICT FINANCING TECHNIQUES

July 17, 2023 - Page 58 of 97



orrick.com

US  |  EMEA  |  ASIA
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP | 51 West 52nd Street | New York, NY 10019-6142 | United States | tel +1-212-506-5000
Attorney advertising. As required by New York law, we hereby advise you that prior results do not guarantee a similar outcome.

Disclaimer: This publication is designed to provide Orrick clients and contacts with information they can use to more effectively manage their 
businesses and access Orrick’s resources. The contents of this publication are for informational purposes only. Neither this publication nor the 
lawyers who authored it are rendering legal or other professional advice or opinions on specific facts or matters. Orrick assumes no liability in 
connection with the use of this publication.

© 2016 Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP. All rights reserved.

Negotiable 
Promissory Notes

Line of Credit with 
Commercial Lender Capital Lease Lease Purchase

Statutory Authority Health & Safety Code 
Section 32130.2

Health & Safety Code 
Section 32130.6

Health & Safety Code 
Section 32130.6

Health & Safety Code 
Section 32130.6

What Can Be 
Financed?

Any District purpose Any District purpose Equipment Real property, buildings 
and facilities

Are Additional 
Revenues Generated?

No, notes are payable 
from revenues of the 
District

No, secured in whole 
or in part with accounts 
receivable or other 
intangible assets of the 
District

No, but security 
interest in equipment 
may be granted

No, lease purchase 
payments are payable 
from revenues of the 
District

Is Voter Approval 
Required?

No, but resolution 
must be adopted by a 
majority of the District 
board

No, but resolution 
must be adopted by a 
majority of the District 
board

No, but resolution 
must be adopted by a 
majority of the District 
board

No, but resolution 
must be adopted by a 
majority of the District 
board

What Is the Maximum 
Maturity?

10 years (subject 
to useful life of the 
financed property)

Must be repaid within 
5 years from each 
separate borrowing 
or draw under the 
line of credit (take-
out financings are 
permitted)

10 years 10 years

What Is the Maximum 
Interest Rate?

12% Generally, none Generally, none Generally, none

May Negotiated Sale 
Be Used?

Yes Yes Yes Yes

What Are the 
Most Important 
Advantages?

Proceeds can be 
used for any purpose, 
including working 
capital

Proceeds can be 
used for any purpose, 
including working 
capital

Flexible financing for 
equipment

Flexible financing 
for real property and 
equipment

What Are the 
Most Important 
Disadvantages?

Total aggregate amount 
of notes outstanding 
at any one time shall 
not exceed 85% of all 
estimated income and 
revenue for the current 
fiscal year

5 year term limits size 
of borrowing

Not available for 
financing real estate

10 year term limits size 
of borrowing

July 17, 2023 - Page 59 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 60 of 97



  

 
18461459.4  

Hanson Bridgett LLP 
777 S. Figueroa Street, Suite 4200, Los Angeles, CA 90017      

Memorandum 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE AND ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 

TO: Karin Freese Hennings, Del Puerto Health Care District 

FROM: David S. Gehrig 
Julian A. Viksman 

DATE: April 15, 2022 

RE: Design-Build Authority for Administrative Office and Ambulance Facility 

   

ISSUE PRESENTED 

Does the Del Puerto Health Care District (the "District") have statutory authority to utilize the  
design-build project delivery method for designing and constructing an administrative office and 
ambulance facility (the "Facility")? 

BRIEF ANSWER 

The District can likely utilize the design-build project delivery method for designing and 
constructing the Facility pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 32132.5 because the 
District is a health care district and the Facility is associated with health care facilities. 

I.  INTRODUCTION 

The District is a health care district formed pursuant to the Local Health Care District Law, 
Health and Safety Code Sections 32000 et seq.1 The District operates a state of the art health 
center that provides adult, pediatric, and industrial health services for the community. The 
current health center provides women's health care education, diabetes education for the public, 
laceration treatment, and asthmatic treatment programs. The District also operates a 24-hour 
emergency ambulance service provided by Patterson District Ambulance ("PDA"). 

The District and PDA desire to expand the current facility to include an expanded apparatus bay 
for ambulances, living accommodations for ambulance crew members, a medication and supply 
room, and administrative office space. The proposed Facility expands upon the current health 
center and ambulance operations center location, which will allow the District and PDA the best 
opportunity to meet their urban response time requirements. The Facility is consistent with the 
City of Patterson's General Plan Goals and is necessary for the continual provision of 
emergency services. 

                                              
1 All statutory references are to the Health and Safety Code unless specified otherwise. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 61 of 97



 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE AND ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 
Memorandum To: 
Karin Freese Hennings, Del Puerto Health Care District 
April 15, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

 
18461459.4  

The District desires to design and construct the Facility using a design-build project delivery 
methodology pursuant to Section 32132.5. This memorandum examines whether the District is 
authorized to utilize this authority for designing and constructing the Facility. 

II.  ANALYSIS 

Section 32132.5 allows health care districts, subject to approval by its Board of Directors, to use 
the design-build procedures described in the Local Agency Public Construction Act to "assign 
contracts for the construction of a building or improvements directly related to construction of a 
hospital or health facility building." (Emphasis added.) There is no case law or authoritative 
guidance on what a building or improvement directly related to the construction of a health 
facility building means. Accordingly, we analyzed the legislative intent for a better understanding 
of the intended scope of the statute. 

First, SB 957 (Hueso) amended Section 32132.5 to include the current design-build language. 
The intent of the Legislature in enacting the bill was to allow the "design-build process be used 
by health care districts solely for buildings associated with hospitals and health care 
facilities." (Emphasis added.) This authority was previously reserved for a few select health 
care districts, but SB 957 expanded the authority to all health care districts, including the 
District. We interpret the Legislature's intent as distinguishing between health care facilities and 
facilities completely unrelated to health care. The District's Facility is "associated with hospitals 
and health care facilities" in that the administrators are essential to the operation of the nearby 
health center, supplies common to the health and ambulance centers will be stored in the 
Facility, and trainings of health center workers will occur in the new building.  

Second, in the legislative history the Legislature provided examples of the type of facilities 
authorized to utilize design-build—"clinics and skilled nursing facilities"—as well as examples of 
prohibited facilities—"streets, highways, public rail transit, roads, bridges, other water resources 
facilities, and related infrastructure." The Facility appears to be much more closely related to the 
authorized facilities than the prohibited facilities. The Facility expands the current health and 
ambulance center, which provides health care-related services, and assists the District in 
satisfying its statutory mandate to provide health care services. 

Finally, the Senate Governance and Finance Committee issued a report examining SB 957. The 
report questioned why a health care district that is only responsible for managing property 
should be allowed to use design-build contracting to construct medical office buildings or other 
infrastructure that will be leased to private health care providers in exchange for rental income 
to the health care district. By asking why these types of facilities are entitled to utilize to the 
statute, the report implicitly acknowledges that a health care district can use the design-build 
statute to construct medical office buildings, even if they are only used to generate income. We 
think this further supports the argument that the District can use the design-build statute to 
construct new buildings for ambulance and administrative office space, which we think are more 
closely associated with health care facilities than a solely income-generating medical office 
building. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 62 of 97



 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE AND ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 
Memorandum To: 
Karin Freese Hennings, Del Puerto Health Care District 
April 15, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

 
18461459.4  

III.  CONCLUSION 

Section 32132.5 allows health care districts to utilize the design-build project delivery method for 
the design and construction of improvements directly related to the construction of a hospital or 
health facility building. The Legislative history of the statute supports our interpretation that the 
design-build process can be used for the Facility because the Facility is much more similar to 
the examples of buildings that are authorized to utilize the statute than the examples of the 
buildings that are prohibited from utilizing the statute. In short, we believe that the Facility has a 
close enough nexus to the District's existing health center to be considered "related to a … 
health facility building," thereby allowing the District to utilize the design-build authority in 
Section 32132.5 for the design and construction of the Facility. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 63 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 64 of 97



5/20/2022

1

and

Commitment to Project February 2018
Acquisition of Property July 2021
Project Next Steps May 2022

Facilities Plan for

Our future…

Vision
A locally cultivated, 
healthier community

Mission
Provide, promote and 
partner in quality 
healthcare for all

1

2

July 17, 2023 - Page 65 of 97



5/20/2022

2

Project Goals

• 40‐50 years in facility

• Long‐term, centralized location

• Office space for Admin and Ambulance staff

• Crew living quarters for up to four ambulance 
crews 

• Community Meeting Room (board mtgs, training, 
CPR , etc.)

Ambulance Need Projection 

Year City Population

Total 

Responses 

Total 

Transports 

Total Unit 

Hours 

Units 

Required

2021 23,781 2,918  1,989  59,111  2.50

2024 27,524 3,250  2,215  65,824  3.00

2030 33,138 3,913  2,667  79,250  3.50

2035 37,816 4,465  3,044  90,438  4.00

2040*
*Satellite Station 42,494 5,017  3,420  101,627  4.50

3

4

July 17, 2023 - Page 66 of 97



5/20/2022

3

Additional Growth

• Rural Communities (Westley, Grayson, Crows Landing)

• Crows Landing Development

• Interstate 5 increased traffic
• Additional Commercial Development on Sperry & I5

Building 
Needs

AMBULANCE
• Ready Room
• Dining Room
• Kitchen
• Crew Office Space
• Dormitory Rooms
• Bathroom / Locker Rooms
• Exercise/Workout Room
• Outside Patio/BBQ Area
• Training / Meeting Room
• Director/QI office space (x2)
• Medication / Supply Room
• Supply Room
• Medical Waste Room
• General Storage

ADMINISTRATION
• Admin Dir/CEO office 
• Human Resources of
• Finance office
• Reception w/workstations
• Records Storage
• Supply
• Break Room
• Bathrooms
• Meeting/Classroom

5

6

July 17, 2023 - Page 67 of 97



5/20/2022

4

Current Facilities

Sq Ft

Admin and Crew Quarters   2,986

Apparatus & Equipment  1,675

Total Current Building  4,661

Current 
Facilities

Space Capacity

Bedrooms (8 lockers for 13 FT) 4 x 100 sf 4+ crew members

Bathrooms (no lockers) 2.5 Single use; opens to living areas

Crew Living Area 1 x 464 sf 6 crew members

Offices 4 offices 7 staff

Office files and breakroom 1 x 288 sf  Max 4 people in break area

Classroom/Storage 1 x 364 sf Max 8 students/class

Apparatus Bay 2 spaces 5 Ambulances

Parking 7 spaces 16 vehicles

Ambulance Supplies/Equip 2 x 160 Overflow to Classroom

Total  2,986 sf

7

8

July 17, 2023 - Page 68 of 97



5/20/2022

5

Building Space Requirements

Space SF AMB ADM

Public Areas 2,300 1,300 1,000

Administrative Areas 3,019 315 2,704

Crew Areas 5,131 5,131 ‐‐

Apparatus / Equipment Area 2,874 2,874 ‐‐

Total Building 13,324 9,620 3,704

Keystone C3 for Admin?

• C3 Conference Room =  388 sf

• Total C3 office space  1,077

• Required  2,704

• Deficit =  1,627‐

• Lacks public entrance
• Cost to renovate $150,000
• Lacks sufficient amenities

9

10

July 17, 2023 - Page 69 of 97



5/20/2022

6

Proposed 
Site Layout

• Public Parking

• Public Area

• ADM/AMB Offices 

• Crew Quarters

• Staff Parking

• Vehicle Yard

• Apparatus Bays

• Driveway

• Grounds

Other Properties & Investment

Keystone B (2012)

• $2,759,000 

• building & improvements

Keystone C (2016)

• $1,859,000 

• building (2/3 improved)

11

12

July 17, 2023 - Page 70 of 97



5/20/2022

7

Building Cost

Space SF AMB ADM

Building $4,367,750 $3,153,539 $1,214,211

Site (preparation, utilities) 1,805,300 1,299,816 505,484

Hard Costs (Gen. Conditions, Builder Profit) 1,296,342 933,366 362,976

Soft Costs (architect, fees, contingency) 1,851,837 1,333,323 518,514

Total Building $9,321,228 $6,711,284 $2,609,944

Steps Completed thus far

• Acquired additional land adjacent to current property
• Assessed building requirements

• Projected Needs (square footage of building and site)
• Adopted Debt Management Policy

• Engaged Municipal Advisor for Funding Consultation

13

14

July 17, 2023 - Page 71 of 97



5/20/2022

8

Upcoming Steps

Design Concept Design‐Build vs. 
Design‐Bid‐Build 

Decision

Evaluate Funding 
Options

Standard & Poor’s 
Rating

Cash Flow

Bond Sale

RFP for Architect 
or RFP for 

Design‐Build

Evaluate 
Economy

RFP Construction Break ground on 
Project

Next Steps

• Approval to Initiate Project

• Approval of Initial Conceptual Design 
Budget = $85,151

Agenda item on May 23, 2022

15

17

July 17, 2023 - Page 72 of 97



Patterson District Ambulance
Utilization Projection

Number of Required FT Ambulances

Building 
Permits Total HH

Persons 
per HH City Pop

Projected 
Responses

Responses 
Per capita

Transports 
(transport 

rate)
Transports 
per capita

Ambulanc
e Hours for 

Urban 
Population

Ambulanc
e Hours 

Per Capita

Patterson 
Ambulanc

e Units 
Required

Non 
Patterson 
Response

s

Non 
Patterson 
Transport

s
Total 

Responses 
Total 

Transports 
Total Unit 

Hours 

 
Schedule
d Units 

Required 
2020 baseline 396 6354 3.74          23781 1908 0.08023 1341 0.05639 17,520      0.73672 2.00          900 573 2,808        1,914        38,767     Year

2021 250 6604 24717 1983 1394 18,209      2.08          2,918        1,989        59,111     2.50        2021
2022 250 6854 25652 2058 1446 18,899      2.16          3,029        2,065        61,348     2022
2023 250 7104 26588 2133 1499 19,588      2.24          3,139        2,140        63,586     2023
2024 250 7354 27524 2208 1552 20,277      2.31          3,250        2,215        65,824     3.00        2024
2025 250 7604 28459 2283 1605 20,967      2.39          3,360        2,290        68,061     2025
2026 250 7854 29395 2358 1658 21,656      2.47          3,471        2,366        70,299     2026
2027 250 8104 30331 2433 1710 22,345      2.55          3,581        2,441        72,537     2027
2028 250 8354 31266 2509 1763 23,035      2.63          3,692        2,516        74,774     2028
2029 250 8604 32202 2584 1816 23,724      2.71          3,802        2,592        77,012     2029
2030 250 8854 33138 2659 1869 24,413      2.79          3,913        2,667        79,250     3.50        2030
2031 250 9104 34073 2734 1921 25,103      2.87          4,023        2,742        81,487     2031
2032 250 9354 35009 2809 1974 25,792      2.94          4,134        2,818        83,725     2032
2033 250 9604 35945 2884 2027 26,481      3.02          4,244        2,893        85,963     2033
2034 250 9854 36880 2959 2080 27,171      3.10          4,355        2,968        88,201     2034
2035 250 10104 37816 3034 2132 27,860      3.18          4,465        3,044        90,438     4.00        2035
2036 250 10354 38752 3109 2185 28,549      3.26          4,576        3,119        92,676     2036
2037 250 10604 39687 3184 2238 29,238      3.34          4,686        3,194        94,914     2037
2038 250 10854 40623 3259 2291 29,928      3.42          4,797        3,269        97,151     2038
2039 250 11104 41559 3334 2343 30,617      3.50          4,907        3,345        99,389     2039
2040 250 11354 42494 3409 2396 31,306      3.57          5,017        3,420        101,627   4.50        2040

O:\Facilities\875 E Street Expansion\2022-08 Ambulance Use Projection.xlsx\Sheet1 7/7/2023

July 17, 2023 - Page 73 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 74 of 97



To construct an administrative office and ambulance facility vital to a rural community that will 

double its size to 50,000 people in the next twenty years. This project supports delivering 

primary healthcare and emergency advanced life support ambulance services in a population 

with limited healthcare options.  

 

 

 

 

The District. The Del Puerto Health Care District covers more than 360 square miles in the rural 

areas of western Stanislaus County in the California Central Valley. The District provides health 

care services to a population of 28,000 through two services a federally certified rural health 

clinic (RHC) providing adult and pediatric primary care and Patterson District Ambulance 

(PDA) providing 24-hour Advanced Life Support (ALS) paramedic response. The health center 

is well-positioned to expand services with community growth after the District purchased and 

finished a new building in 2011 and then purchased the adjacent building 2016 for future 

expansion. 

 

The Need. However, the District administrative offices and ambulance station need more space 

at the current location than is possible in the existing facility. The current office and ambulance 

facility was built for two 24-hour ambulance crews, with three offices and very little storage 

space. With three ambulance crews and seven administrative staff, as well as the need to store 

supplies throughout the building wherever there is an open space, we have outgrown this facility. 

Additional emergency supply cache storage requirements have further complicated our space 

limitations. 

 

The City of Patterson is projected to grow from 23,000 to 50,000 by 2040, and the District 

administrative office and ambulance station operations, while ideally located, require a larger 

facility for existing and future staffing. The District expanded the existing property by 

purchasing adjacent land. An architectural building program was designed to accommodate the 

planned increase in administrative and ALS service demands. The new facility will serve as a 

central service and supply location, with the long-term goal to co-locate PDA ambulances in the 

City of Patterson or West Stanislaus Fire Protection District fire stations to supplement our 

facility as needed. 

 

The Project. The project is the construction of a single-story, multi-use facility that includes 

administrative offices, a community room, and ambulance crew quarters and apparatus bays. The 

proposed facility is designed and sized to support the District for the next 40 years. The facility 

community room will allow instruction of health and wellness initiatives such as community 

CPR instruction, chronic health disease community support and education, and health care 

infrastructure during local disasters.  

 

The ambulance portion of the facility will house up to 4 ambulance crews and supervisory 

support personnel. The COVID pandemic highlighted the need to maintain stockpiles of primary 

healthcare supplies, and the new facility would provide much-needed space for this supply 

cache. The facility will expand climate-controlled storage space for medication and other 

temperature-sensitive supplies. The current facility has apparatus space for only two ambulances. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 75 of 97



This requires two-thirds of the emergency vehicle fleet to be stored outside, unsecured, and 

subjected to weather conditions. This lack of appropriate apparatus space can delay responses; 

however, the new facility will have room for up to eight ambulances or support vehicles, 

including supply and maintenance activities. 

 

The new facility will have emergency power resources where none exist today. Full backup 

power is critical for the facility and staff to maintain operations during extended power outages 

and disasters. Local disaster support includes providing health and emergency medical services.  

Our access roads to the closest hospitals (18-22 miles away) are subject to flooding by the San 

Joaquin River, which isolates the entire west side of the county. 

 

District administration comprises human resources, financial management, the public board of 

directors, and executive functions. Maintaining centralized administrative support services in 

close integration with ALS ambulance and health services allows the District to serve best the 

primary health needs of our growing rural community.  

 

The Request. This is a one-time capital expense request. This request does not involve any 

funding for either equipment or personnel. One hundred percent of the requested funding will 

fund approximately 30% of the projected construction costs. For clarity, there are no District 

salaries or equipment costs in this funding request. The District has been working on this 

project's building program and additional property acquisition phase for the past five years, in 

which COVID severely delayed progress. Since we initiated our district office and ambulance 

facility expansion plan, construction costs have dramatically increased, which is the primary 

basis for this funding request. The building design is in the final phase. 

 

This funding request of $4.65 million represents approximately one-third of the facility's $15.5 

million construction cost. The remaining cost will be funded by an anticipated $2.5 million in 

housing development impact fees, District tax revenue of $4.5 million, and service revenue of 

$3.85 million over ten years will fund the balance. In addition, the District is fully capable of 

supporting the ongoing operational costs of the facility.  

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 76 of 97



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – May 22, 2023 

9C. Design-Bid-Build (DBB) vs. Design-Build (DB) – Staff Recommendation  Page 1 of 2 

 

\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\05-may\9c design bid build v design build.docx 5/16/2023 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: Yes 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Design-Bid-Build (DBB) vs. Design-Build (DB) – Staff Recommendation 

STAFF REPORT: Design-Bid-Build (DBB) and Design-Build (DB) are two common contracting 
methods used in construction projects. In the DBB method, the district hires a designer or architect to 
create the project's design and then invites bids from contractors to construct it. In contrast, the DB 
method involves hiring a single contractor to both design and construct the project. 

There are advantages and disadvantages to both methods, and choosing the preferred method depends on 
various factors, such as the project's complexity, timeline, budget, and the owner's preferences. 

Method Advantages Disadvantages 

Design-
Bid-Build 
(DBB) 

- The owner has greater control over 
the design and can ensure it meets 
their specific needs and preferences. 

- The competition between 
contractors can lead to lower 
construction costs. 

- The owner can select a contractor 
based on their expertise, experience, 
and qualifications. 

- The design phase and bidding process can be 
lengthy, causing delays in the project's start 
date. 

- The contractor is not involved in the design 
phase, which may lead to misunderstandings 
and errors during construction. 

- Change orders are common in DBB projects, 
resulting in additional costs and delays. 

Design-
Build 
(DB) 

- The design and construction phases 
can overlap, leading to faster project 
completion. 

- The contractor is involved in the 
design phase, which can lead to a 
more efficient and cost-effective 
design. 

- - The single point of responsibility 
simplifies communication and 
reduces the potential for disputes 
between the owner, designer, and 
contractor. 

- The owner has less control over the design, 
which may not meet their specific needs and 
preferences. 

- The lack of competition may lead to higher 
construction costs. 

- The owner may be limited in their choice of 
contractor, as only contractors with design 
capabilities or partnerships can be considered. 

 The District has heard from a large project general contractor, the City planning 
department, legal counsel, and the conceptual design architect express their professional opinion on the 
options.  Those with a preference suggested the district consider Design-Build. Many healthcare districts 
utilize DBB for their projects.  

Recommendation: Staff recommends Design-Build (DB) as the preferred contracting method. 
Healthcare/Public Safety facilities are complex projects that require a highly coordinated and efficient 
design and construction process. The DB method's advantages of faster project completion, greater 
efficiency in design, and simplified communication make it an ideal choice for DPHCD. A single point of 
responsibility may help reduce the potential for disputes between the district, designer, and contractor. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 77 of 97



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – May 22, 2023 

9C. Design-Bid-Build (DBB) vs. Design-Build (DB) – Staff Recommendation  Page 2 of 2 

 

\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\05-may\9c design bid build v design build.docx 5/16/2023 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Fiscal transparency; fiscal stewardship 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

STAFFING IMPACT: None 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO & Paul Willette, Director of Ambulance Operations 

ATTACHMENT(S): None 
 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 
 
ROLL CALL REQUIRED: NO      
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move the Board of Directors to adopt a Design-Build approach for the 

District Office and Ambulance Station construction project. 
 

Motion Made By Motion Second 
Director Avila   
Director Campo   
Director Benefield   
Director Stokman   
[vacant]   

 
Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 
Director Avila     
Director Campo     
Director Benefield     
Director Stokman     
[vacant]     

 
 

July 17, 2023 - Page 78 of 97



1

Karin Freese

From: Karin Freese
Sent: Tuesday, May 23, 2023 4:51 PM
To: Karin Freese
Subject: Fiscal transparency in Design-Bid-Build versus Design-Build
Attachments: 5-2015-Spring-David-Gehrig-Design-Build-For-Public-Works-Projects.pdf

Dear Board and Staff members, 

At yesterday evening’s board meeting an explanation and comparison of fiscal transparency tools in the Design-Bid-Build 
and Design-Bid methods was requested.  

Fiscal transparency refers to the extent to which government budgets, expenditures, and financial activities are open, 
accessible, and understandable to the public. In the context of construction projects, such as design-bid-build and design-
build, fiscal transparency plays a crucial role in ensuring accountability and preventing corruption. Following is an 
explanation and comparison of the fiscal transparency tools: 

1. Design-Bid-Build (DBB): In the design-bid-build method, the project is divided into two distinct phases: the design 
phase and the construction phase. Here are some methods of ensuring fiscal transparency in DBB: 

a. Open and Competitive Bidding: The bidding process should be open to all qualified contractors, ensuring 
fair competition. Advertisements or announcements regarding the bidding process must be made public, 
providing project details, specifications, and bid requirements. 

b. Transparent Bid Evaluation: The evaluation process should be conducted transparently, with clear criteria 
and evaluation procedures. It's important to establish an evaluation committee that includes members 
from different relevant departments or agencies to ensure impartiality. 

c. Public Disclosure of Bid Results: After the bidding process is completed, the results, including bid 
amounts and the winning contractor, should be publicly disclosed. This helps to maintain transparency 
and allows the public to scrutinize the decision-making process. 

d. Clear Budgetary Information: Throughout the project, detailed information about the project budget, 
including cost estimates, expenditures, and any changes or modifications, should be made available to 
the public. This allows for accountability and ensures that funds are allocated and spent appropriately. 

2. Design-Build (DB): In the design-build method, the project owner contracts a single entity responsible for both the 
design and construction aspects. While this approach differs from DBB, fiscal transparency can still be maintained 
through the following methods: 

a. Competitive Selection Process: The selection of the design-build entity should follow a competitive 
process. This involves issuing requests for qualifications or proposals from interested entities, ensuring 
that multiple firms have an opportunity to participate. 

b. Transparent Contract Negotiations: Once the design-build entity is selected, the negotiation process for 
the contract should be transparent. The contract should clearly define and document key terms, such as 
the project scope, deliverables, cost estimates, and payment schedules. 

c. Regular Progress Reporting: The design-build entity should be required to provide regular progress 
reports, including financial updates, to the project owner. These reports should outline expenditures, any 
changes to the budget, and reasons for deviations, ensuring transparency and accountability. 

d. Oversight and Auditing: Independent oversight and auditing can help ensure fiscal transparency. External 
auditors or government agencies may periodically review the project's financial records, verifying that 
funds are used appropriately and in accordance with contractual obligations. 

July 17, 2023 - Page 79 of 97



2

Regardless of the project delivery method, maintaining fiscal transparency involves 1) open and competitive processes, 2) 
clear documentation, 3) regular reporting, and 4) public disclosure of relevant information. These practices help promote 
accountability, discourage corruption, and build trust among stakeholders and the general public. 

For additional information on the design-build for public agencies process, I have attached a paper from David Gehrig. 
You may remember he is the attorney we consulted with originally on our district’s ability to utilize design-build on this 
project. 

Please submit questions and requests for additional information before the June 12 special board meeting. Your 
questions will be researched, and the answer will be given to all board members simultaneously. 
 
Karin R. Freese, MBA 
Chief Executive Officer 
Administrative Director 
  
karin.hennings@dphealth.org 
209.894.8201 direct 

 
                A Public Entity 

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 80 of 97



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – June 12, 2023 

8A. Design-Bid-Build (DBB) vs. Design-Build (DB) – Staff Recommendation  Page 1 of 2 

 

\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\06-jun\12-special board meeting\8a design bid build v design build.docx 6/7/2023 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Design-Bid-Build (DBB) vs. Design-Build (DB) – Staff Recommendation 

STAFF REPORT:  The District has heard from Joe Simile of Simile Construction Service 
(March 2021) and City of Patterson Planning Department (June 2021) each 
of whom compared and contrasted Design-Build and Design-Bid-Build. The 
consensus from both groups was Design-Build would be preferable if the 
district has the option. In April 2022, the board received the legal opinion 
from David Gehrig of Hansen Bridgett which concluded the facility has a 
close enough nexus to the district's existing health center to be considered 
"related to a … health facility building," thereby allowing the District to 
utilize the design-build authority in Section 32132.5 for design and 
construction. The conceptual design architect, Eric Wohle in March of 2023 
also expressed his professional opinion on the options without stating a 
preference. Additionally, Ms. Freese attended a six-hour seminar on public 
project contracting which covered many benefits of Design-Build 

  Healthcare/Public Safety facilities are complex projects that require a highly 
coordinated and efficient design and construction process. Many health care 
districts (e.g., Tahoe Forest, Peninsula Healthcare District, Beach Cities 
Healthcare District) have successfully used design-build for their projects – 
staff is unaware of any project which failed under this model. The DB 
method's advantages of faster project completion, greater efficiency in 
design, and simplified communication make it an ideal choice for DPHCD. A 
single point of responsibility may help reduce the potential for disputes 
between the district, designer, and contractor. 

  In May 2023, the board requested additional information on any fiscal 
transparency requirements that may differentiate the two methods. 
Regardless of the project delivery method, maintaining fiscal transparency 
involves 1) open and competitive processes, 2) clear documentation, 3) 
regular reporting, and 4) public disclosure of relevant information. 
These practices help promote accountability, discourage corruption, and 
build trust among stakeholders and the public. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the board approve Design-Build (DB) as the preferred 
contracting method for this project. 

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Fiscal transparency; fiscal stewardship 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

STAFFING IMPACT: None 

July 17, 2023 - Page 81 of 97



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board Meeting – June 12, 2023 

8A. Design-Bid-Build (DBB) vs. Design-Build (DB) – Staff Recommendation  Page 2 of 2 

 

\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\06-jun\12-special board meeting\8a design bid build v design build.docx 6/7/2023 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO and Paul Willette, Director of Ambulance Operations 

ATTACHMENT(S): Email dated May 23, 2023, discussing fiscal transparency 
 Agenda Action Item Summary which was tabled from May 22, 2023 
 2015 article by David Gehrig on benefits of Design-Build for public projects 
 Table of Contents from Public Contracting Laws seminar May 23-24, 2023 
 Seminar slides which compare and contrast DBB with DB 
 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 
 
ROLL CALL REQUIRED: NO      
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move the Board of Directors to adopt a Design-Build approach for the 

District Office and Ambulance Station construction project. 
 

Motion Made By Motion Second 
Director Avila   
Director Campo   
Director Benefield   
Director Stokman   
[vacant]   

 
Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 
Director Avila     
Director Campo     
Director Benefield     
Director Stokman     
[vacant]     

 
 

July 17, 2023 - Page 82 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 83 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 84 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 85 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 86 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 87 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 88 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 89 of 97



July 17, 2023 - Page 90 of 97



 

   

ROBERT P. WALKER 
Healthcare Project Development Consultant 
45 Years Experience 

 
Bob’s passion is to serve 
healthcare organizations. Lis-
tening and effective communi-
cations are the foundation to 
his leadership and partnership 
skills. He offers a strategic and 
tactical perspective of project 
management, based on his 
experience in assembling effec-

tive teams, understanding market dynamics and 
operations, preparing/executing contracts, fi-
nancial management, design and construction 
management, managing the technology/
equipment/furnishings selection and procure-
ment and the move-in/start-up process.  
His expertise and experience in planning 
healthcare environments provides even greater 
depth to serve his clients. Bob believes that a 
collaborative and comprehensive approach to 
management issues and problem solving, pro-
vides the greatest value to clients. 

LIBERTY DAYTON REGIONAL  
MEDICAL CENTER 
Liberty, Texas 
Replacement 18 bed critical access hospital on a 
35 acre greenfield site.  
$32.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
CASCADE MEDICAL CENTER 
Cascade, Idaho 
Replacement 12 bed critical access hospital on a 
8 acre greenfield site.  
$35.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
SIOUX CENTER COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 
Sioux Center, Iowa                     
Replacement 23 bed critical access hospital on a 
17 acre greenfield site.  
$48.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
LAKE REGION HEALTHCARE 
Ambulatory Clinic Expansion & Hospital Remodel 
New Clinic and Hospital Remodel 
$31.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL  
New Lenox, Illinois  
New 550,000 SF Replacement Hospital with an 
Integrated 210,000 SF Medical Office.  
Hospital - $375.0 M, MOB - $40.0 M. 
Role: Project Director 
Comprehensive Project Management Services, 
On Site Services, Dietary Procurement Manage-
ment Services 
 
MAPLE GROVE HOSPITAL               
Maple Grove, Minnesota                          
New 300,000 SF, 90 bed primary care hospital, 
expandable to 300 beds. 
$183.9 M 
Role: Project Director 
Comprehensive Project Management Services, 
On Site Services, Dietary Procurement Manage-
ment Services 
 
 
NORTH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL                          
FACILITY ASSESSMENT 
Robbinsdale, Minnesota            
Preparation of a facility assessment and capital 
expenditure projection for the remodel of an exist-
ing patient care tower.   
Role: Facility Assessment & Capital Projections 
 
 

 
SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
ESSENTIA HEALTH SERVICES  
Duluth, Minnesota 
Projects varied in size and value.  
Bob was embedded with the in-house team to 
provide project management and planning ser-
vices in the projects associated with the reloca-
tion of services for the Vision NorthLand (VNL) 
campus replacement hospital project.    
Select projects included:  
Relocation of departments for new VNL project. 
Developed Standard Systems & Procedures. 
Conversion of Big Box Retail into Ambulatory 
Healthcare Services Centers 
Community and Specialty Clinics. 
Diverse Support Facilities 
Role: Comprehensive Project Management Ser-
vices, On Site Services, Planning Services 
 
HENNEPIN HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
Embedded with in-house project leadership team.  
New Clinic & Specialty Center—$220.8 M 
Role: Project Director - Comprehensive Project 
Management Services, On Site Services, Plan-
ning Services 
 
MARSHFIELD CLINIC SYSTEM—EAU CLAIRE 
Eau Claire, Wisconsin 
New Hospital—$131.0 M 
New Cancer Center—$25.8 M 
Role: Project Director 
 

RESUME  

July 17, 2023 - Page 91 of 97



 

   

PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
ESSENTIA HEALTH - PINE RIVER 
Sandstone, Minnesota 
CAH Replacement 
$24.6 M 
Expansion of ED Ambulance Garage & Adminis-
trative Offices, Infusion Center Remodel 
$1.7 M 
Role: Planning Services, Project Management 
Services 
 
FAIRVIEW SOUTHDALE PERIOPERATIVE      
EXPANSION & REMODEL $40.7 M  
Edina, Minnesota               
Multi-Phased expansion and remodel of 19 oper-
ating rooms, associated staff/support areas and 
central sterile processing department 
Role: Senior Project Manager 
EMERGENCY SERVICES EXPANSION &       
REMODEL $31.5 M 
Multi-Phased expansion and remodel of the 
Emergency Center and Addition of a Roof Heli-
pad.  
Role: Senior Project Manager 
 
FAIRVIEW MAPLE GROVE AMBULATORY 
CARE CENTER                                  
Maple Grove, Minnesota             
New 200,000 SF Ambulatory Care Center inte-
grated with a Medical Office. 
Role: Project Manager at Walker, Architectural 
Principal/Planner at prior firm. 
 
NCHS LAND USE PLANNING 
Bemidji, Minnesota                      
Preparation of a land use plan for a 180 acre 
healthcare campus.   
Role: Project Manager & Planner 
 
KIRBY MEDICAL CENTER 
Monticello, Illinois 
Site Selection and Land Use Planning 
Role: Planning Services 
 
NORTH MEMORIAL HEALTH SERVICES 
Maple Grove, Minnesota 
Ambulatory Care Center and MOB  
Role: Project Manager 

ROBERT P. WALKER  Resume Page 2 

EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY  
 
 Education 
 University of Notre Dame, Bach of Arch 
 Tri State University, Drafting & Design 
 Culver Military Academy 
 

 United States Peace Corps 
 Served in Bahrain, 1976—1978 
 Ministry of Housing, Architect 
 

 American College of Healthcare Architects  
 Founding Member, College of Fellows 
 Board of Regents, 2006 - 2012  
 Past President, 2011 
 

 American Academy of Healthcare Foundation 
 Past Trustee 
 

 American Institute of Architects 
 Past Registration, Texas 
 American Society of Hospital Engineers    
 Past Member 
 

 City of Minnetonka, MN 
 Past Planning & Zoning Commissioner   
 Past EDA Commissioner    
 Comprehensive Plan Task Force   
 

 Hearts & Hammers (Volunteer Organization)   
 Founder, Past Chair 
 Chapters: Dallas, TX and Twin Cities, MN 
 

 National & Regional Presentations 
 PDC, Health Design, MDH, TORCH  
 

 Board of Director 
      Ebenezer Services, Finance Committee  

July 17, 2023 - Page 92 of 97



 

   

PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
SHENZHEN HOSPITAL * 
Shenzhen, China   
Participated in a design competition for a new 
1,000 bed hospital, including housing, academic 
space, Provided master planning and schematic 
design.  
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
WARREN AMBULTORY CARE CENTER *                           
Tulsa, Oklahoma               
New 86,000 SF Multi-Specialty Clinic and 1,000 
Car Parking Ramp, Master planning. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
HUDSON HOSPITAL * 
Hudson, Wisconsin                           
New 25 bed critical access hospital, expandable 
to 40 beds. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS * 
Bemidji, Minnesota               
Major expansion of Patient Care Tower, Main 
Entry, Physical Therapy Center, Dialysis Center 
and miscellaneous remodels. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
INNOVIS HEALTH * 
Fargo, North Dakota                                
New 90 bed primary care hospital integrated with 
100,000 SF multi-specialty clinic. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
FALLON -  ST. VINCENT MEDICAL CITY * 
Worcester, Massachusetts                       
New 288 bed replacement hospital with integrat-
ed clinics on an urban site with significant chal-
lenges. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
GENESYS HEALTH PARK * 
Grand Blanc, Michigan                            
New 200 bed replacement hospital, expandable 
to 350 beds with integrated medical offices locat-
ed on a master planned 478 acre campus. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
HEALTHPARK FLORIDA * 
Fort Myers, Florida                                  
New 200 bed hospital with integrated medical 
offices on a master planned 400 acre campus. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
*Projects completed prior to Walker & Associates 

PAST CAREER EXPERIENCE 
 
CEO/President, Walker & Associates                    
Minneapolis  
Bob owned a consulting firm specializing in 
healthcare project management for 17 years that 
served the entire Midwest region. In 2019 he 
merged his firm with MedCraft Healthcare Real 
Estate Services.   
 
Vice President, Healthcare Principal                     
HGA, Minneapolis  
Bob served as Principal In Charge and a Planner 
on healthcare projects and developed a national 
practice over his tenure. Bob also served as the 
Director of Principals and was a member of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
Vice President, Design & Construction  
Trammell Crow Healthcare, Dallas 
Bob was in charge of all design and construction 
for the healthcare division of a national healthcare 
development firm, specialized in developing new 
integrated acute and ambulatory healthcare cam-
puses across the nation. 
 
Director, Design & Construction - Central    
Region, Tenet Healthcare, Dallas 
Bob served as the manager of all capital expendi-
tures for the central region division of a national 
for-profit healthcare chain.  
 
Director of Project Services 
Methodist Healthcare System, Houston 
Bob, as the director of Project Services for a na-
tionally renown 1,200 bed tertiary care hospital, 
oversaw the design and construction activities for 
all remodel and expansion projects. 
 
Other Prior Experience 
Bob worked as an architect with various firms, 
including Caudill Rowlett Scott and several others 
in the southwest. He also served as an architect 
in the mid-70’s in the United States Peace Corps 
in the Middle East. 

ROBERT P. WALKER  Resume Page 3 

WARREN AMBULTORY CARE CENTER *                           
Tulsa, Oklahoma               
New 86,000 SF Multi-Specialty Clinic and 1,000 
Car Parking Ramp, Master planning. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 

July 17, 2023 - Page 93 of 97



From: Bob Walker
To: Karin Freese; Paul Willette
Cc: Bob Walker
Subject: Introduction of Walker Advisory, Inc.
Date: Friday, June 30, 2023 10:51:33 AM
Attachments: Bob Walker Resume_02-16-2023.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Karin and Paul, Thank you very much for taking the time to discuss your project and allowing me to
introduce myself. Your project and description of how I may be of service to you sounds like a good
fit. Attached is my resume and the relevant/current references that we discussed. These parties
have been notified that you may be contacting them.  I have played a very similar role to what we
discussed, with each of these clients.  
 
Tom Reinhardt, CEO
Cascade Medical Center (a critical access hospital)
Cascade, ID 
Cell:  208-484-6970
treinhardt@cmchd.org
 
Bruce Stratton, Chair of the Board
Cell: 936-346-1832
Rhonda Campbell, CEO
Liberty Dayton Regional Medical Center (a critical access hospital)
Liberty, TX
rcampbell@libertydaytonrmc.com
Cell: 936-336-0667 (pls email her first, otherwise your call may go to spam)
 
I will work on a timeline and projected hours/fee for your review and have this information to you by

July 10th.  Again, thank you for considering me. Have a great July 4th!
 
Best Regards, Bob
 
Robert  P. Walker
Mobile 612-306-7143
bwalker@walkerus.com

 

July 17, 2023 - Page 94 of 97

mailto:bwalker@walkerus.com
mailto:karin.freese@dphealth.org
mailto:Paul.Willette@dphealth.org
mailto:bwalker@walkerus.com
mailto:bwalker@walkerus.com



 


   


ROBERT P. WALKER 
Healthcare Project Development Consultant 
45 Years Experience 


 
Bob’s passion is to serve 
healthcare organizations. Lis-
tening and effective communi-
cations are the foundation to 
his leadership and partnership 
skills. He offers a strategic and 
tactical perspective of project 
management, based on his 
experience in assembling effec-


tive teams, understanding market dynamics and 
operations, preparing/executing contracts, fi-
nancial management, design and construction 
management, managing the technology/
equipment/furnishings selection and procure-
ment and the move-in/start-up process.  
His expertise and experience in planning 
healthcare environments provides even greater 
depth to serve his clients. Bob believes that a 
collaborative and comprehensive approach to 
management issues and problem solving, pro-
vides the greatest value to clients. 


LIBERTY DAYTON REGIONAL  
MEDICAL CENTER 
Liberty, Texas 
Replacement 18 bed critical access hospital on a 
35 acre greenfield site.  
$32.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
CASCADE MEDICAL CENTER 
Cascade, Idaho 
Replacement 12 bed critical access hospital on a 
8 acre greenfield site.  
$35.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
SIOUX CENTER COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 
Sioux Center, Iowa                     
Replacement 23 bed critical access hospital on a 
17 acre greenfield site.  
$48.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
LAKE REGION HEALTHCARE 
Ambulatory Clinic Expansion & Hospital Remodel 
New Clinic and Hospital Remodel 
$31.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL  
New Lenox, Illinois  
New 550,000 SF Replacement Hospital with an 
Integrated 210,000 SF Medical Office.  
Hospital - $375.0 M, MOB - $40.0 M. 
Role: Project Director 
Comprehensive Project Management Services, 
On Site Services, Dietary Procurement Manage-
ment Services 
 
MAPLE GROVE HOSPITAL               
Maple Grove, Minnesota                          
New 300,000 SF, 90 bed primary care hospital, 
expandable to 300 beds. 
$183.9 M 
Role: Project Director 
Comprehensive Project Management Services, 
On Site Services, Dietary Procurement Manage-
ment Services 
 
 


NORTH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL                          
FACILITY ASSESSMENT 
Robbinsdale, Minnesota            
Preparation of a facility assessment and capital 
expenditure projection for the remodel of an exist-
ing patient care tower.   
Role: Facility Assessment & Capital Projections 
 


 


 


SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 


ESSENTIA HEALTH SERVICES  
Duluth, Minnesota 
Projects varied in size and value.  
Bob was embedded with the in-house team to 
provide project management and planning ser-
vices in the projects associated with the reloca-
tion of services for the Vision NorthLand (VNL) 
campus replacement hospital project.    
Select projects included:  
Relocation of departments for new VNL project. 
Developed Standard Systems & Procedures. 
Conversion of Big Box Retail into Ambulatory 
Healthcare Services Centers 
Community and Specialty Clinics. 
Diverse Support Facilities 
Role: Comprehensive Project Management Ser-
vices, On Site Services, Planning Services 
 


HENNEPIN HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
Embedded with in-house project leadership team.  
New Clinic & Specialty Center—$220.8 M 
Role: Project Director - Comprehensive Project 
Management Services, On Site Services, Plan-
ning Services 
 


MARSHFIELD CLINIC SYSTEM—EAU CLAIRE 
Eau Claire, Wisconsin 
New Hospital—$131.0 M 
New Cancer Center—$25.8 M 
Role: Project Director 
 


RESUME  







 


   


PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
ESSENTIA HEALTH - PINE RIVER 
Sandstone, Minnesota 
CAH Replacement 
$24.6 M 
Expansion of ED Ambulance Garage & Adminis-
trative Offices, Infusion Center Remodel 
$1.7 M 
Role: Planning Services, Project Management 
Services 
 
FAIRVIEW SOUTHDALE PERIOPERATIVE      
EXPANSION & REMODEL $40.7 M  
Edina, Minnesota               
Multi-Phased expansion and remodel of 19 oper-
ating rooms, associated staff/support areas and 
central sterile processing department 
Role: Senior Project Manager 
EMERGENCY SERVICES EXPANSION &       
REMODEL $31.5 M 
Multi-Phased expansion and remodel of the 
Emergency Center and Addition of a Roof Heli-
pad.  
Role: Senior Project Manager 
 
FAIRVIEW MAPLE GROVE AMBULATORY 
CARE CENTER                                  
Maple Grove, Minnesota             
New 200,000 SF Ambulatory Care Center inte-
grated with a Medical Office. 
Role: Project Manager at Walker, Architectural 
Principal/Planner at prior firm. 
 


NCHS LAND USE PLANNING 
Bemidji, Minnesota                      
Preparation of a land use plan for a 180 acre 
healthcare campus.   
Role: Project Manager & Planner 
 
KIRBY MEDICAL CENTER 
Monticello, Illinois 
Site Selection and Land Use Planning 
Role: Planning Services 
 
NORTH MEMORIAL HEALTH SERVICES 
Maple Grove, Minnesota 
Ambulatory Care Center and MOB  
Role: Project Manager 


ROBERT P. WALKER  Resume Page 2 


EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY  
 


 Education 
 University of Notre Dame, Bach of Arch 
 Tri State University, Drafting & Design 
 Culver Military Academy 
 


 United States Peace Corps 
 Served in Bahrain, 1976—1978 
 Ministry of Housing, Architect 
 


 American College of Healthcare Architects  
 Founding Member, College of Fellows 
 Board of Regents, 2006 - 2012  
 Past President, 2011 
 


 American Academy of Healthcare Foundation 
 Past Trustee 
 


 American Institute of Architects 
 Past Registration, Texas 


 American Society of Hospital Engineers    
 Past Member 
 


 City of Minnetonka, MN 
 Past Planning & Zoning Commissioner   
 Past EDA Commissioner    
 Comprehensive Plan Task Force   
 


 Hearts & Hammers (Volunteer Organization)   
 Founder, Past Chair 
 Chapters: Dallas, TX and Twin Cities, MN 
 


 National & Regional Presentations 
 PDC, Health Design, MDH, TORCH  
 


 Board of Director 
      Ebenezer Services, Finance Committee  







 


   


PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
SHENZHEN HOSPITAL * 
Shenzhen, China   
Participated in a design competition for a new 
1,000 bed hospital, including housing, academic 
space, Provided master planning and schematic 
design.  
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
WARREN AMBULTORY CARE CENTER *                           
Tulsa, Oklahoma               
New 86,000 SF Multi-Specialty Clinic and 1,000 
Car Parking Ramp, Master planning. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
HUDSON HOSPITAL * 
Hudson, Wisconsin                           
New 25 bed critical access hospital, expandable 
to 40 beds. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS * 
Bemidji, Minnesota               
Major expansion of Patient Care Tower, Main 
Entry, Physical Therapy Center, Dialysis Center 
and miscellaneous remodels. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
INNOVIS HEALTH * 
Fargo, North Dakota                                
New 90 bed primary care hospital integrated with 
100,000 SF multi-specialty clinic. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
FALLON -  ST. VINCENT MEDICAL CITY * 
Worcester, Massachusetts                       
New 288 bed replacement hospital with integrat-
ed clinics on an urban site with significant chal-
lenges. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
GENESYS HEALTH PARK * 
Grand Blanc, Michigan                            
New 200 bed replacement hospital, expandable 
to 350 beds with integrated medical offices locat-
ed on a master planned 478 acre campus. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
HEALTHPARK FLORIDA * 
Fort Myers, Florida                                  
New 200 bed hospital with integrated medical 
offices on a master planned 400 acre campus. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
*Projects completed prior to Walker & Associates 


PAST CAREER EXPERIENCE 
 


CEO/President, Walker & Associates                    
Minneapolis  
Bob owned a consulting firm specializing in 
healthcare project management for 17 years that 
served the entire Midwest region. In 2019 he 
merged his firm with MedCraft Healthcare Real 
Estate Services.   
 
Vice President, Healthcare Principal                     
HGA, Minneapolis  
Bob served as Principal In Charge and a Planner 
on healthcare projects and developed a national 
practice over his tenure. Bob also served as the 
Director of Principals and was a member of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
Vice President, Design & Construction  
Trammell Crow Healthcare, Dallas 
Bob was in charge of all design and construction 
for the healthcare division of a national healthcare 
development firm, specialized in developing new 
integrated acute and ambulatory healthcare cam-
puses across the nation. 
 
Director, Design & Construction - Central    
Region, Tenet Healthcare, Dallas 
Bob served as the manager of all capital expendi-
tures for the central region division of a national 
for-profit healthcare chain.  
 
Director of Project Services 
Methodist Healthcare System, Houston 
Bob, as the director of Project Services for a na-
tionally renown 1,200 bed tertiary care hospital, 
oversaw the design and construction activities for 
all remodel and expansion projects. 
 
Other Prior Experience 
Bob worked as an architect with various firms, 
including Caudill Rowlett Scott and several others 
in the southwest. He also served as an architect 
in the mid-70’s in the United States Peace Corps 
in the Middle East. 


ROBERT P. WALKER  Resume Page 3 


WARREN AMBULTORY CARE CENTER *                           
Tulsa, Oklahoma               
New 86,000 SF Multi-Specialty Clinic and 1,000 
Car Parking Ramp, Master planning. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 







Del Puerto Health Care District - District Office & Ambulance Station Project
Patterson, CA
Conceptual Project Schedule 
(created for projecting project advisor hours and fee)

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul
Line ItePhase # of months Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12

1 Selection of Design/Build Firm 2

2 Design Phase 7

3 Construction Phase 18

4 Building Activation Phase  3

5 Project Close-Out Phase 4

6 Total Projected Project Timeframe 28

Projected Hours for B. Walker 36 36 24 24 16 16 16 24 24 8 8 8

Hourly Rate

Proposed Fee Projected for 2023 36,040$   

Reimbursable Expenses

2023 2024

July 17, 2023 - Page 95 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District - District Office & Ambulanc
Patterson, CA
Conceptual Project Schedule 
(created for projecting project advisor hours and fee)

Line ItePhase # of months

1 Selection of Design/Build Firm 2

2 Design Phase 7

3 Construction Phase 18

4 Building Activation Phase  3

5 Project Close-Out Phase 4

6 Total Projected Project Timeframe 28

Projected Hours for B. Walker

Hourly Rate

Proposed Fee

Reimbursable Expenses

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Month 13 Month 14 Month 15 Month 16 Month 17 Month 18 Month 19 Month 20 Month 21 Month 22 Month 23

8 8 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 8

Projected for 2024 34,980$  

July 17, 2023 - Page 96 of 97



Del Puerto Health Care District - District Office & Ambulanc
Patterson, CA
Conceptual Project Schedule 
(created for projecting project advisor hours and fee)

Line ItePhase # of months

1 Selection of Design/Build Firm 2

2 Design Phase 7

3 Construction Phase 18

4 Building Activation Phase  3

5 Project Close-Out Phase 4

6 Total Projected Project Timeframe 28

Projected Hours for B. Walker

Hourly Rate

Proposed Fee

Reimbursable Expenses

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
Month 24 Month 25 Month 26 Month 27 Month 28 Month 29

8 4 4 4 4 320

Hourly Rate 265$               

Projected for 2025 13,780$  Total NTE Fee 84,800$          

Reimbursable Expenses None Included

2025

July 17, 2023 - Page 97 of 97



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Special Board Meeting – July 17, 2023 

8C. Approval to Contract with Building Project Consultant, Bob Walker Page 1 of 2 

 

o:\board\2023\07-jul\07-17 special board mtg\8c. bob walker construction consultant.docx 7/10/2023 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: No 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 
 

SUBJECT:   Approval to Contract with Building Project Consultant, Bob Walker 

STAFF REPORT: During the June 26, 2023, board meeting, the Board expressed their desire to 
retain a public construction consultant to partner with staff and assist with 
creating the RFP, evaluating potential design build contractors, and 
managing the construction phase of the project.  Staff considered the 
District’s ongoing business relationship with Wipfli and their extensive 
healthcare industry experience.  An inquiry was made to solicit their input to 
identify potential public construction consultants.  Wiplfi was very familiar 
with these consultants and has worked with many; however, most dealt with 
large hospital projects. After fully discussing our project with me, Wipfli 
recommended construction consultant Bob Walker with Walker and 
Associates as suitable for the scope of our project. 

 Bob has worked on numerous large projects; however, his interest and 
passion are smaller rural healthcare projects.  Bob is also a healthcare 
architect and, as his resume demonstrates, has extensive construction and 
project management experience that spans his 45-year career.  Paul and I 
have had several conversations with Bob and shared information about our 
project so that he could determine if he would be of value to our project. 

 Mr. Walker views our project as well aligned with his project area of 
expertise and enthusiastically believes that he can add value to our project 
and help guide the District through our facility construction project.  He 
quickly produced a project timeline beginning with developing a design-
build RFP all the way through to move-in to the completed facility.  He 
established an estimate of his billable project time and a not to exceed 
amount that is less than our anticipated expenditure for a project management 
consultant. Mr. Walker will be working remotely and minimal if any 
expenses are expected unless the District chooses to have him visit. 

 Staff recommends that the Board authorize the CEO to finalize a contract 
with Walker and Associates for the Del Puerto Ambulance and 
Administration Center project management. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not to exceed $84,800 plus expenses, if any. 

STAFFING IMPACT: Provides professional expertise and assistance throughout the building project. 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese, CEO, and Paul Willette, Director of Ambulance Operations 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Special Board Meeting – July 17, 2023 

8C. Approval to Contract with Building Project Consultant, Bob Walker Page 2 of 2 

 

o:\board\2023\07-jul\07-17 special board mtg\8c. bob walker construction consultant.docx 7/10/2023 

ATTACHMENT(S): Project Timeline and Not to Exceed Consulting Fees 
 Bob Walker Resume 
 
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 
 
ROLL CALL REQUIRED: YES      
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move the Board of Directors to authorize CEO Karin Freese to enter 

into a professional services agreement with Bob Walker for consulting 
assistance on the DPAC building project with a not to exceed price of 
$84,800 plus expenses, if any. 

 
Motion Made By Motion Second 
Director Avila   
Director Campo   
Director Benefield   
Director Stokman   
[vacant]   

 
Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 
Director Avila     
Director Campo     
Director Benefield     
Director Stokman     
[vacant]     

 
 



 

   

ROBERT P. WALKER 
Healthcare Project Development Consultant 
45 Years Experience 

 
Bob’s passion is to serve 
healthcare organizations. Lis-
tening and effective communi-
cations are the foundation to 
his leadership and partnership 
skills. He offers a strategic and 
tactical perspective of project 
management, based on his 
experience in assembling effec-

tive teams, understanding market dynamics and 
operations, preparing/executing contracts, fi-
nancial management, design and construction 
management, managing the technology/
equipment/furnishings selection and procure-
ment and the move-in/start-up process.  
His expertise and experience in planning 
healthcare environments provides even greater 
depth to serve his clients. Bob believes that a 
collaborative and comprehensive approach to 
management issues and problem solving, pro-
vides the greatest value to clients. 

LIBERTY DAYTON REGIONAL  
MEDICAL CENTER 
Liberty, Texas 
Replacement 18 bed critical access hospital on a 
35 acre greenfield site.  
$32.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
CASCADE MEDICAL CENTER 
Cascade, Idaho 
Replacement 12 bed critical access hospital on a 
8 acre greenfield site.  
$35.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
SIOUX CENTER COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 
Sioux Center, Iowa                     
Replacement 23 bed critical access hospital on a 
17 acre greenfield site.  
$48.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
LAKE REGION HEALTHCARE 
Ambulatory Clinic Expansion & Hospital Remodel 
New Clinic and Hospital Remodel 
$31.0 M 
Role: Project Director 
 
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL  
New Lenox, Illinois  
New 550,000 SF Replacement Hospital with an 
Integrated 210,000 SF Medical Office.  
Hospital - $375.0 M, MOB - $40.0 M. 
Role: Project Director 
Comprehensive Project Management Services, 
On Site Services, Dietary Procurement Manage-
ment Services 
 
MAPLE GROVE HOSPITAL               
Maple Grove, Minnesota                          
New 300,000 SF, 90 bed primary care hospital, 
expandable to 300 beds. 
$183.9 M 
Role: Project Director 
Comprehensive Project Management Services, 
On Site Services, Dietary Procurement Manage-
ment Services 
 
 
NORTH MEMORIAL HOSPITAL                          
FACILITY ASSESSMENT 
Robbinsdale, Minnesota            
Preparation of a facility assessment and capital 
expenditure projection for the remodel of an exist-
ing patient care tower.   
Role: Facility Assessment & Capital Projections 
 
 

 
SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
ESSENTIA HEALTH SERVICES  
Duluth, Minnesota 
Projects varied in size and value.  
Bob was embedded with the in-house team to 
provide project management and planning ser-
vices in the projects associated with the reloca-
tion of services for the Vision NorthLand (VNL) 
campus replacement hospital project.    
Select projects included:  
Relocation of departments for new VNL project. 
Developed Standard Systems & Procedures. 
Conversion of Big Box Retail into Ambulatory 
Healthcare Services Centers 
Community and Specialty Clinics. 
Diverse Support Facilities 
Role: Comprehensive Project Management Ser-
vices, On Site Services, Planning Services 
 
HENNEPIN HEALTHCARE SYSTEM 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 
Embedded with in-house project leadership team.  
New Clinic & Specialty Center—$220.8 M 
Role: Project Director - Comprehensive Project 
Management Services, On Site Services, Plan-
ning Services 
 
MARSHFIELD CLINIC SYSTEM—EAU CLAIRE 
Eau Claire, Wisconsin 
New Hospital—$131.0 M 
New Cancer Center—$25.8 M 
Role: Project Director 
 

RESUME  



 

   

PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
ESSENTIA HEALTH - PINE RIVER 
Sandstone, Minnesota 
CAH Replacement 
$24.6 M 
Expansion of ED Ambulance Garage & Adminis-
trative Offices, Infusion Center Remodel 
$1.7 M 
Role: Planning Services, Project Management 
Services 
 
FAIRVIEW SOUTHDALE PERIOPERATIVE      
EXPANSION & REMODEL $40.7 M  
Edina, Minnesota               
Multi-Phased expansion and remodel of 19 oper-
ating rooms, associated staff/support areas and 
central sterile processing department 
Role: Senior Project Manager 
EMERGENCY SERVICES EXPANSION &       
REMODEL $31.5 M 
Multi-Phased expansion and remodel of the 
Emergency Center and Addition of a Roof Heli-
pad.  
Role: Senior Project Manager 
 
FAIRVIEW MAPLE GROVE AMBULATORY 
CARE CENTER                                  
Maple Grove, Minnesota             
New 200,000 SF Ambulatory Care Center inte-
grated with a Medical Office. 
Role: Project Manager at Walker, Architectural 
Principal/Planner at prior firm. 
 
NCHS LAND USE PLANNING 
Bemidji, Minnesota                      
Preparation of a land use plan for a 180 acre 
healthcare campus.   
Role: Project Manager & Planner 
 
KIRBY MEDICAL CENTER 
Monticello, Illinois 
Site Selection and Land Use Planning 
Role: Planning Services 
 
NORTH MEMORIAL HEALTH SERVICES 
Maple Grove, Minnesota 
Ambulatory Care Center and MOB  
Role: Project Manager 

ROBERT P. WALKER  Resume Page 2 

EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY  
 
 Education 
 University of Notre Dame, Bach of Arch 
 Tri State University, Drafting & Design 
 Culver Military Academy 
 

 United States Peace Corps 
 Served in Bahrain, 1976—1978 
 Ministry of Housing, Architect 
 

 American College of Healthcare Architects  
 Founding Member, College of Fellows 
 Board of Regents, 2006 - 2012  
 Past President, 2011 
 

 American Academy of Healthcare Foundation 
 Past Trustee 
 

 American Institute of Architects 
 Past Registration, Texas 
 American Society of Hospital Engineers    
 Past Member 
 

 City of Minnetonka, MN 
 Past Planning & Zoning Commissioner   
 Past EDA Commissioner    
 Comprehensive Plan Task Force   
 

 Hearts & Hammers (Volunteer Organization)   
 Founder, Past Chair 
 Chapters: Dallas, TX and Twin Cities, MN 
 

 National & Regional Presentations 
 PDC, Health Design, MDH, TORCH  
 

 Board of Director 
      Ebenezer Services, Finance Committee  



 

   

PROJECT EXPERIENCE   
 
SHENZHEN HOSPITAL * 
Shenzhen, China   
Participated in a design competition for a new 
1,000 bed hospital, including housing, academic 
space, Provided master planning and schematic 
design.  
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
WARREN AMBULTORY CARE CENTER *                           
Tulsa, Oklahoma               
New 86,000 SF Multi-Specialty Clinic and 1,000 
Car Parking Ramp, Master planning. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
HUDSON HOSPITAL * 
Hudson, Wisconsin                           
New 25 bed critical access hospital, expandable 
to 40 beds. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
MISCELLANEOUS PROJECTS * 
Bemidji, Minnesota               
Major expansion of Patient Care Tower, Main 
Entry, Physical Therapy Center, Dialysis Center 
and miscellaneous remodels. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
INNOVIS HEALTH * 
Fargo, North Dakota                                
New 90 bed primary care hospital integrated with 
100,000 SF multi-specialty clinic. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 
 
FALLON -  ST. VINCENT MEDICAL CITY * 
Worcester, Massachusetts                       
New 288 bed replacement hospital with integrat-
ed clinics on an urban site with significant chal-
lenges. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
GENESYS HEALTH PARK * 
Grand Blanc, Michigan                            
New 200 bed replacement hospital, expandable 
to 350 beds with integrated medical offices locat-
ed on a master planned 478 acre campus. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
HEALTHPARK FLORIDA * 
Fort Myers, Florida                                  
New 200 bed hospital with integrated medical 
offices on a master planned 400 acre campus. 
Role: Project Manager/Owner’s Representative 
 
*Projects completed prior to Walker & Associates 

PAST CAREER EXPERIENCE 
 
CEO/President, Walker & Associates                    
Minneapolis  
Bob owned a consulting firm specializing in 
healthcare project management for 17 years that 
served the entire Midwest region. In 2019 he 
merged his firm with MedCraft Healthcare Real 
Estate Services.   
 
Vice President, Healthcare Principal                     
HGA, Minneapolis  
Bob served as Principal In Charge and a Planner 
on healthcare projects and developed a national 
practice over his tenure. Bob also served as the 
Director of Principals and was a member of the 
Board of Directors. 
 
Vice President, Design & Construction  
Trammell Crow Healthcare, Dallas 
Bob was in charge of all design and construction 
for the healthcare division of a national healthcare 
development firm, specialized in developing new 
integrated acute and ambulatory healthcare cam-
puses across the nation. 
 
Director, Design & Construction - Central    
Region, Tenet Healthcare, Dallas 
Bob served as the manager of all capital expendi-
tures for the central region division of a national 
for-profit healthcare chain.  
 
Director of Project Services 
Methodist Healthcare System, Houston 
Bob, as the director of Project Services for a na-
tionally renown 1,200 bed tertiary care hospital, 
oversaw the design and construction activities for 
all remodel and expansion projects. 
 
Other Prior Experience 
Bob worked as an architect with various firms, 
including Caudill Rowlett Scott and several others 
in the southwest. He also served as an architect 
in the mid-70’s in the United States Peace Corps 
in the Middle East. 

ROBERT P. WALKER  Resume Page 3 

WARREN AMBULTORY CARE CENTER *                           
Tulsa, Oklahoma               
New 86,000 SF Multi-Specialty Clinic and 1,000 
Car Parking Ramp, Master planning. 
Role: Architectural Principal/Planner 



Del Puerto Health Care District - District Office & Ambulance Station Project
Patterson, CA
Conceptual Project Schedule 
(created for projecting project advisor hours and fee)

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul
Line ItePhase # of months Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12

1 Selection of Design/Build Firm 2

2 Design Phase 7

3 Construction Phase 18

4 Building Activation Phase  3

5 Project Close-Out Phase 4

6 Total Projected Project Timeframe 28

Projected Hours for B. Walker 36 36 24 24 16 16 16 24 24 8 8 8

Hourly Rate

Proposed Fee Projected for 2023 36,040$   

Reimbursable Expenses

2023 2024



Del Puerto Health Care District - District Office & Ambulanc
Patterson, CA
Conceptual Project Schedule 
(created for projecting project advisor hours and fee)

Line ItePhase # of months

1 Selection of Design/Build Firm 2

2 Design Phase 7

3 Construction Phase 18

4 Building Activation Phase  3

5 Project Close-Out Phase 4

6 Total Projected Project Timeframe 28

Projected Hours for B. Walker

Hourly Rate

Proposed Fee

Reimbursable Expenses

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Month 13 Month 14 Month 15 Month 16 Month 17 Month 18 Month 19 Month 20 Month 21 Month 22 Month 23

8 8 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 8

Projected for 2024 34,980$  



Del Puerto Health Care District - District Office & Ambulanc
Patterson, CA
Conceptual Project Schedule 
(created for projecting project advisor hours and fee)

Line ItePhase # of months

1 Selection of Design/Build Firm 2

2 Design Phase 7

3 Construction Phase 18

4 Building Activation Phase  3

5 Project Close-Out Phase 4

6 Total Projected Project Timeframe 28

Projected Hours for B. Walker

Hourly Rate

Proposed Fee

Reimbursable Expenses

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
Month 24 Month 25 Month 26 Month 27 Month 28 Month 29

8 4 4 4 4 320

Hourly Rate 265$               

Projected for 2025 13,780$  Total NTE Fee 84,800$          

Reimbursable Expenses None Included

2025


	_2023-07-17 Special Board Mtg Agenda-CORRECTED.pdf
	A. Gov’t Code section 54956.8 Conference with Real Property Negotiator

	2023-07-17 Board Packet.pdf
	8A. Health Center Master Plan
	Blank Page

	8B Board DPAC History thru 2023-06
	_DPAC Project History
	2017-07-12 PDA Program Requirements
	2018-01-23 Legal Memo re PD 89-01 (CW051907xDCB25)
	2018-02-26 Ambulance & District Head Quarters Plan R2
	2018-04-27 MEMO Board re Facility Planning
	2018-04-30 Board Resolution 18-017 signed
	2018-04-30 exhibit Survey Map
	Sheets and Views
	exhibit


	2021-01-25 Facilities Planning Update Slides
	2021-03 Simile Constuction, DBB, & DB Education
	2021-05-05 Email re Meeting with City Planning Department
	2021-06-28 City of Patterson presentation_rev2
	2021-07 9E AMB District HQ Facility Plan Draft
	2022-01 CA-Health-Care-Financing-Techniques
	2022-04 Gerhig Legal Opinion Design Build
	issue presented
	BRIEF ANSWER
	I.   INTRODUCTION
	II.   ANALYSIS
	III.   CONCLUSION

	2022-05-18 Building Plan Review Presentation
	2022-08-29 Forecast of Ambulance Unit Hours
	2023-03 DPHCD Facility Funding Request
	2023-05-22 Design Bid Build v Design Build Recommendation
	2023-05-23 Email Contract Fiscal Transparency
	2023-06-12 Design Bid Build v Design Build
	2023-06-12 Elevations 1&2 Combined
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_1 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_3 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_4 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_7 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_5 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_2 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_6 - Photo
	230601 Del Puerto HCD 3rd Option A_8 - Photo

	2023-07-17a Bob Walker Resume_02-16-2023
	2023-07-17b Walker Advisory References
	2023-07-17c DPHCD Project Mgmt Projected Hours and NTE Fee
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	8C. Bob Walker Construction Consultant
	8c1. Bob Walker Resume_02-16-2023
	8c2. Walker Timeline and Fee Proposal
	2023-07-17c DPHCD Project Mgmt Projected Hours and NTE Fee





